
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                           

 
IF YOU WISH TO ADDRESS THE BOARD: 

   
 1. Please file a speaker’s slip with the Executive Director, and upon 

  recognition by the Chair, approach the rostrum and state your name; 
  speakers are limited to 5 minutes per item. 
 
  2. If you need special assistance to participate in the meetings of the City of 

Alameda Housing Authority Board of Commissioners, please contact  
   (510) 747-4325 (TTY/TRS: 711) or vmondo@alamedahsg.org 
   Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City of Alameda 

Housing Authority Board of Commissioners to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

 
   

 

AGENDA REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
DATE & TIME Wednesday, April 17, 2019 – 

 

  Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 
    
LOCATION Independence Plaza, 703 Atlantic Avenue, Alameda, CA 
 
  78-6800 Alii Drive, #3, Kailua-Kona, HI 96730 
  (By Telephone: (888) 204-5987, Pin Number 8876253) 
   
Welcome to the Board of Commissioners of the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda 
meeting.  Regular Board of Commissioners meetings are held on the third Wednesday of each 
month in the Ruth Rambeau Memorial Community Room at Independence Plaza. 
 
Public Participation 
Anyone wishing to address the Board on agenda items or business introduced by 
Commissioners may speak for a maximum of five minutes per agenda item when the subject is 
before the Board.  Please file a speaker’s slip with the Housing Authority Executive Director if 
you wish to address the Board of Commissioners. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
1.  ROLL CALL - Board of Commissioners  
 
2.  Public Comment (Non-Agenda) 

mailto:vmondo@alamedahsg.org


Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                                 April 17, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

                                                                                                           

3.  CONSENT CALENDAR 
 Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be approved or accepted by 

one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received 
from the Board of Commissioners or a member of the public. 

3-A.  Approve Minutes of the Board of Commissioners Meeting held March 20, 2019 – Page 1 
3-B.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Operations/H.R./I.T. – Page 10 
3-C.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for the Housing Programs Department – Page 13 
3-D.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for the Rent Stabilization Program – Page 16 
3-E. Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Property Operations – Page 18 
3-F. Accept Update on the Independence Plaza 504/ADA Upgrade – Page 23 
3-G.  Accept a Memorandum on the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda’s Mechanisms 

for Communication and Outreach Efforts – Page 25 
3-H.  Accept the Monthly Overview Report for Housing & Community Development – Page 28 
3-I.  Accept the Monthly Development Report for Everett Commons – Page 30 
3-J.  Accept the Monthly Development Report for Rosefield Village – Page 32 
3-K.  Accept the Monthly Development Report for North Housing – Page 34 
3-L.  Informational Memo: Staff Recommends HKIT Architects to ICD Board for North 

Housing Permanent Supportive Housing Design Services – Page 37 
3-M.  Authorize the Executive Director to Negotiate the Renewal of the Services Agreement 

between the City of Alameda and the Housing Authority to Provide City Housing 
Services and Policing Services – Page 39 

3-N.  Accept the Revised Housing Authority of the City of Alameda Procurement Policy – 
Page 56 

3-O.  Accept Report on Housing Authority Records Disposition – Page 65 
3-P.  Accept an Update of the Housing Authority Two-Year Work Plan for Fiscal Years July 1, 

2017 to June 30, 2019 – Page 77 
3-Q.  Accept the Final Audit Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018 – Page 82 
 
4.  AGENDA 
 
4-A. Resolution Approving the Desire and the Submission of a Letter of Interest to Obtain 

MTW Designation Under the Second Cohort of the MTW Expansion, That the Housing 
Authority of the City of Alameda Will Comply With the Requirements of the Program, 
and Expressing Willingness to Evaluate Test Rent #1, Test Rent #2, and/or Test Rent 
#3 – Page 158 

 
4-B. Approve Revised Payment Standard Decrease for the Section 8 Housing Choice 

Voucher Program and Payment Standard Increase for Project Based Vouchers Effective 
June 2, 2019 – Page 161 

 
5.  ORAL COMMUNICATIONS, Non-Agenda (Public Comment) 
 
6.  COMMISSIONER COMMUNICATIONS, (Communications from the Commissioners) 
 
7.  ADJOURNMENT 

 

 



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                                 April 17, 2019                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
 

                                                                                                           

* * * 
 

Note 
 

    If you need special assistance to participate in the meetings of the Housing Authority of 
the City of Alameda Board of Commissioners, please contact (510) 747-4325  
(TTY/TRS: 711) or vmondo@alamedahsg.org. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting 
will enable the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda Board of Commissioners to 
make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

 
 Documents related to this agenda are available for public inspection and copying at the 

Office of the Housing Authority, 701 Atlantic Avenue, during normal business hours.  
 

 Know Your RIGHTS Under The Ralph M. Brown Act: Government’s duty is to serve the 
public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public.  The Board of Commissioners 
exists to conduct the business of its constituents. Deliberations are conducted before the 
people and are open for the people’s review.  In order to assist the Housing Authority’s 
efforts to accommodate persons with severe allergies, environmental illnesses, multiple 
chemical sensitivity or related disabilities, attendees at public meetings are reminded 
that other attendees may be sensitive to various chemical based products. Please help 
the Housing Authority accommodate these individuals. 

mailto:vmondo@alamedahsg.org


 

                                                                                                           

DRAFT MINUTES 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

OF THE HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA 
HELD WEDNESDAY MARCH 20, 2019 

 
The Board of Commissioners Closed Session began at 6:45 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL - Board of Commissioners 

 
Present:   Commissioner Chair Tamaoki, Commissioner Hadid, Commissioner Kay, 

Commissioner Kurrasch, Commissioner Rickard (arrived late), and 
Commissioner Weinberg 

 
Absent:   Commission Vice Chair McCahan 

 
The Board of Commissioners meeting was called to order at 7:11 p.m. 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
1.  ROLL CALL - Board of Commissioners  

 
Present:   Commissioner Chair Tamaoki, Commission Vice Chair McCahan (via 

phone), Commissioner Hadid, Commissioner Kay, Commissioner 
Kurrasch, Commissioner Rickard, and Commissioner Weinberg 

 
2.  Public Comment on Closed Session 
 
  None 
  
3.  Closed Session – 6:45 p.m. – Adjournment to Closed Session to Consider: 
 
3-A.  Closed Session pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8, Conference with 

Real Property Negotiators.  Property:  Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 74-1373-2-2; 
Authority Negotiators:  Vanessa Cooper and Kathleen Mertz; Negotiating Parties:  
Community Improvement Commission City of Alameda/Catellus; Under Negotiation:  
Price and Terms of Payment. 

 
4.  Adjournment of Closed Session – 7:09 p.m. 
 
5.  RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING – 7:11 p.m. 

Page 1

Page 1 of 163



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                              March 20, 2019 
 

                                                                                                           

6.   Announcement of Action Taken in Closed Session, if any. 
 

Chair Tamaoki reported that the Board gave direction to staff. 
 
7.  Public Comment (Non-Agenda) 
 

Richard Neveln, a member of the public, spoke about adding automatic door 
functionality to the doors at Independence Plaza to allow for maneuverability for those 
that need assistance.  Ms. Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director, explained that AHA 
staff came before the Board last year regarding Independence Plaza’s ADA upgrade 
and while automatic door functions will not be on every door throughout the property, 
each building will get a touch panel to assist.  Commissioner Kurrasch commented 
that there are two kick pad panels on the doors at the Housing Authority’s office.  

 
8.  CONSENT CALENDAR 

 Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be approved or accepted 
by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is 
received from the Board of Commissioners or a member of the public. 

 *Items discussed on February 20, 2019 have been placed on the March 20, 2019 
Regular Meeting Agenda for ratification. 
 

Items accepted or adopted are indicated by bold font. 
   

Ms. Cooper clarified that there was concern that the February 20, 2019 Regular Board 
of Commissioners Meeting might not have been properly posted, so the March 20, 
2019 meeting packet has the full February 20, 2019 packet as well as new March 20, 
2019 items. 

 
Commissioner Rickard addressed a question on item 8-C regarding lead safe housing 
rule and wanted further information around this topic and how it effects Section 8 
landlords.  Ms. Cooper explained that there are two types of lead based testing 
required depending on the type of voucher, and went on to explain that if an AHA unit 
is tested and an issue is found, staff fixes the issue.  If an independent landlord owns 
a property with a lead issue, the landlord has 120 days to remediate the problem.  
Some lead test results came back in January and AHA is currently working with the 
effected properties. Commissioner Rickard clarified that this does not effects regular 
section 8 landlords and Ms. Cooper confirmed that it does not because they certify 
that the unit is safe at the time of lease up. 

 
Commissioner Kurrasch moved to accept the motion and Commissioner Kay 
seconded motion. The motion passed unanimously: 
 

Yes: 6 Commissioner Chair Tamaoki, Commissioner Hadid, 
Commissioner Kay, Commissioner Kurrasch, Commissioner 
Rickard, and Commissioner Weinberg 

Excused: 1 Vice Chair McCahan 

Page 2

Page 2 of 163



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                              March 20, 2019 
 

                                                                                                           

*8-A.  Approve Minutes of the Board of Commissioners Meeting held October 17, 2018, 
December 5, 2018, and January 16, 2019 

*8-B.  Accept the Monthly February Overview Report for Operations / H.R. / I.T. 
*8-C.  Accept the Monthly February Overview Report for the Housing Programs 

Department 
*8-D.  Accept the Monthly February Overview Report for the Rent Stabilization 

Program 
*8-E.  Accept the Monthly February Overview Report for Property Operations 
*8-F. Accept the Monthly February Overview Report for Housing & Community 

Development 
*8-G. Accept the Monthly February Development Report for Everett Commons 
*8-H.  Accept the Monthly February Development Report for Rosefield Village 
*8-I.  Accept the Monthly February Development Report for North Housing and 

Provide Feedback to Staff 

*8-J.  Accept the Quarterly Investment Report for Period Ending December 30, 2018 
*8-K.   Approve 2019 Out-of-State Travel for Staff 
*8-L.  Authorize the Executive Director to Negotiate and Approve a Contract between 

the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda and 3Di, Inc. Up to a Total Not to 
Exceed the Amount of $200,000 Within a Five-Year Period 

*8-M.  Authorize the Executive Director to Approve an Extension of Two Years for the 
Contract Between the Alameda Housing Authority and CGI Federal Inc. in the 
Amount of Not to Exceed $350,000 for Five Years 

8-N.  Accept Draft Minutes of the Board of Commissioners Meeting held February 20, 

2019 

8-O.  Accept the March Monthly Overview Report for Operations, H.R., and I.T. 

8-P.  Accept the March Monthly Overview Report for the Housing Programs 

Department 

8-Q.  Accept the March Monthly Overview Report for the Rent Stabilization Program 

8-R. Accept the March Monthly Overview Report for Property Operations 

8-S. Accept the March Monthly Overview Report for Housing & Community 

Development 

8-T.  Accept the March Monthly Development Report for Everett Commons 

8-U.  Accept the March Monthly Development Report for Rosefield Village 

8-V.  Approve Amendment to the Down Payment Assistance (DPA) Promissory Note 

8-W. Authorize the Executive Director to Negotiate and Enter Into a Legal Services 

Contract Between the Housing Authority and Carle Macke Power and Ross LLC 

in the Amount Not to Exceed $114,000 for One Year 
 
 
9.  AGENDA 
 
9-A.  Accept the Draft Audit Report for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2018 and Authorize the 

Executive Director to Approve and Finalize Minor Changes to the June 30, 2018 Audit 
Report 

 
  Ms. Cooper reiterated that AHA released an RFP for a new auditor last year and 

selected Rubino & Company Chartered.  Due to staffing changes, this contract was 

Page 3

Page 3 of 163



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                              March 20, 2019 
 

                                                                                                           

transferred to Citrin Cooperman & Company, LLP to ensure the 2017-2018 audit 
deadline could be made.   

   
  Richard Neveln, a member of the public, spoke regarding how the February 20, 2019 

Regular Board of Commissioners meeting agenda was posted. 
 
  Ms. Cooper then introduced Mr. Michael Stephens, Partner of Citrin Cooperman & 

Company LLC, who gave a slide presentation on the draft audit report.  Mr. Stephens 
explained that for all intents and purposes, though this report is a draft, after this 
presentation the items presented tonight will be finalized.  One item highlighted by Mr. 
Stephens is a change in the OPEB plan and he explained that accounting rules have 
changed and as a result, as a participant of the State of California’s OPEB plan, AHA 
has been impacted.  Mr. Stephens mentioned that this was a very smooth initial year 
audit, AHA staff was prepared and responsive when producing any requested 
documents, and there were no disagreements with AHA management. 

 
  After the presentation, Chair Tamaoki asked for further information around what 

“corrected and uncorrected misstatements” means, and Mr. Stephens explained that 
similar to other firms, Citrin used a dollar unit sampling method to create a materiality 
threshold of AHA’s financial statements.  This sampling pulls documents and asks at 
which point a reasonable person would think that the financial statements were 
misstated.  If the audit team comes up with a variance, the materiality is looked at to 
determine if it is recorded or not recorded; and that the OPEB adjustment is a new 
accounting standard, so it has to be recorded. There may be some other items that 
are not material, so the audit team makes management aware of recommended 
adjustments and if management does not agree, this would be an item that gets 
disclosed to the Board. In this particular audit, the uncorrected misstatements were 
related to accounts payable and accrued interest payable which were basically timing 
issues. 

 
  Commissioner Hadid commented that this audit went smoothly considering AHA does 

not have a Finance Director and thanked staff for working so hard behind the scenes. 
 

Commissioner Kurrasch moved to accept the motion and Commissioner Weinberg 
seconded motion. The motion passed unanimously: 
 

Yes: 6 Commissioner Chair Tamaoki, Commissioner Hadid, 
Commissioner Kay, Commissioner Kurrasch, Commissioner 
Rickard, and Commissioner Weinberg 

Excused: 1 Vice Chair McCahan 

 
 
9-B. Conduct A Public Hearing to Hear Comments on Housing Authority Annual Plan for 

Fiscal Year Starting July 1, 2019 
 
 Richard Neveln, a member of the public, commented on his access to the Board 

packet and about the furniture around Independence Plaza, requesting that it be made 

Page 4

Page 4 of 163



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                              March 20, 2019 
 

                                                                                                           

taller with blocks to accommodate IP residents needing higher seating.  Mr. Neveln 
also commented that the IP parking lot is very dark due to trees obscuring the 
illumination and that he hits curbs with his large vehicle because of the darkness. Mr. 
Neveln would like to see the ADA parking requirements for the IP parking lot because 
additional room is needed on both sides of his vehicle when parked in a parking 
space. 

  
 Ms. Cooper explained that AHA conducts a hearing on the Annual Plan each year and 

introduced Ms. Veronica Jefferson, Management Analyst, to give an overview.  The 
process of updating the AHA Annual Plan began in October 2018.  This five-year plan 
explains the goals and objectives of AHA and staff submits an Annual Plan seventy-
five days prior to the new fiscal year. Ms. Jefferson noted that one of the boxes 
selected in the previous Annual Plan was incorrectly checked, but in the plan before 
the Board today, this error has been corrected.  AHA scored a “High Performer” with 
90% or greater again this year, and eight internal staff members were promoted in 
2018.  Another success is the pilot rollout of Rent Café; the full implementation will 
take place by May 2019.  Per protocol, there was a forty-five-day comment period for 
the community to give feedback on the Annual Plan and no comments were received. 

 
 Commission Chair Tamaoki opened Public Hearing at 8:06 p.m. and seeing no further 

comments, closed the Hearing at 8:08 p.m. 
  
 
9-C. Adopt the Annual Plan for Fiscal Year Starting July 1, 2019 and Authorize the Chair to 

Certify, By Resolution, that Board of Commissioners Has Approved Submission of the 
Agency Plan to HUD 

 
Commissioner Kurrasch moved to accept the motion and Commissioner Weinberg 
seconded motion. A roll call vote was taken and all were in favor of adopting the 
resolution: 
 

Yes: 6 Commissioner Chair Tamaoki, Commissioner Hadid, 
Commissioner Kay, Commissioner Kurrasch, Commissioner 
Rickard, and Commissioner Weinberg 

Excused: 1 Vice Chair McCahan 

 
 

*9-D. Accept Report to the Board of Commissioners on the 2018 Compensation Study and 
Adopt the Corresponding Resolution to Adopt a Revised Pay Schedule 

 
 Ms. Cooper explained that item 9-D as well as item 9-F came before the February 20, 

2019 Regular Board meeting, but due to potential improper posting, these items are 
being presented again for ratification.  Ms. Janet Basta, Director of HR and 
Operations, explained that in 2018 a compensation study was performed for director 
level/senior management positions.  AHA used an outside firm based in Sacramento 
and the AHA positions were benchmarked against comparable agencies.  The full 

Page 5

Page 5 of 163



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                              March 20, 2019 
 

                                                                                                           

benefit package was included as opposed to just position salaries, and this resulted in 
total compensation study. 

 
Commissioner Rickard moved to accept the motion and Commissioner Kay seconded 
motion. A roll call vote was taken and all were in favor of adopting the resolution: 
 

Yes: 6 Commissioner Chair Tamaoki, Commissioner Hadid, 
Commissioner Kay, Commissioner Kurrasch, Commissioner 
Rickard, and Commissioner Weinberg 

Excused: 1 Vice Chair McCahan 

 
 
9-E. Adopt the Resolution to Adopt Revised Pay Schedules for the Period of July 1, 2015 

to Present 
 
 Ms. Basta explained that in early 2018, AHA was notified that AHA was selected by 

CalPERS to participate in an audit of pay practices and salary.  There were no 
material findings on pay rates, but one observation was found regarding the display of 
titles in past years’ pay schedule formatting.  As a result, AHA updated the pay 
schedule formatting beginning July 1, 2015 through the present pay schedule and is 
before the Board tonight to ask that all changes to the pay schedules be retroactively 
approved. Ms. Basta noted that the salary levels on the pay schedules were approved 
prior; what has changed is the formatting of the pay schedules. 

 
 Commission Chair Tamaoki asked if the formatting was correct prior to July 1, 2015 

and Ms. Basta explained that the prior pay schedules were not in the correct format, 
but the CalPERS audit date of observation only went back to July 1, 2015, so only the 
pay schedules from that date forward needed to be updated.  Commissioner Hadid 
asked about employee titles being correct and Ms. Basta explained some of the salary 
schedules did not have each title listed, or all pay and title information may not have 
been formatted on one page, so the updates presented tonight have corrected those 
errors. 

 
Commissioner Rickard moved to accept the motion and Commissioner Kay seconded 
motion. A roll call vote was taken and all were in favor of adopting the resolution: 
 

Yes: 6 Commissioner Chair Tamaoki, Commissioner Hadid, 
Commissioner Kay, Commissioner Kurrasch, Commissioner 
Rickard, and Commissioner Weinberg 

Excused: 1 Vice Chair McCahan 

 
 

*9-F. Adopt the Resolution to Approve the Amended Joint Powers Agreement Creating the 
California Housing Workers’ Compensation Authority (CHWCA) 

 

Page 6

Page 6 of 163



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                              March 20, 2019 
 

                                                                                                           

 Ms. Basta explained that the memo for this agenda item is part of CHWCA Joint 
Powers Authority, and each time a change Is made, the changes must go back to the 
participating agency’s Board for approval. 

 
 Commission Chair Tamaoki asked if this changes any worker’s comp benefits and Ms. 

Basta confirmed that it does not. 
 

Commissioner Kurrasch moved to accept the motion and Commissioner Weinberg 
seconded motion. A roll call vote was taken and all were in favor of adopting the 
resolution: 
 

Yes: 6 Commissioner Chair Tamaoki, Commissioner Hadid, 
Commissioner Kay, Commissioner Kurrasch, Commissioner 
Rickard, and Commissioner Weinberg 

Excused: 1 Vice Chair McCahan 

 
 
9-G. Accept the March Monthly Development Report for North Housing and Recommend 

Staff to Submit the Development Plan Application Utilizing SB 35 
 
 Ms. Danielle Thoe, Management Analyst, gave an overview of the North Housing 

project thus far. The land transfer documents have been drafted and the parcel will 
likely be transferred in the coming weeks.  Carmel Partners are moving forward with 
road construction and AHA staff continues to coordinate with Habitat for Humanity.  
Habitat for Humanity has agreed to contribute a portion of land to the development of 
the paseo and since their parcel has an exit onto AHA parcel’s street, staff is working 
on an agreement to memorialize these agreements. 

 
Ms. Thoe then discussed the Development Plan Application (DPA) and the key 
principle components of the plan.  Commission Chair Tamaoki confirmed that the 
proposed homeless housing will be in Area A. Ms. Kathleen Mertz, Director of Housing 
& Community Development, added that the areas are proposed concepts rather than 
the final building details for each lot.  Commissioner Kay asked for clarity around the 
“pocket parks” and Ms. Thoe confirmed that these areas will be smaller sitting areas 
and that there will be a few of these “pocket parks” distributed throughout the site.  Ms. 
Thoe then commented on the proposed phasing and confirmed that staff will come 
back for each specific design prior to the development of the individual lots.  The City 
of Alameda wants an idea of what the space will be used for and to understand the 
concept behind the parcel’s development. Ms. Thoe then discussed the DPA process 
and procedures and the environmental review.  AHA staff is more confident in SB 35 
helping to streamline the building process since the February 20, 2019 board meeting 
and Commissioner Kurrasch was pleased to get another North Housing update and 
information surrounding SB 35. 

 
 Commissioner Rickard had a question regarding the island depicted on slide 12 on the 

image of the Development Plan drawing.  Between Block A and Block B there is a 
small roundabout and he asked that staff examine whether this park/roundabout is 

Page 7

Page 7 of 163



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                              March 20, 2019 
 

                                                                                                           

necessary.  Ms. Thoe commented that this was a requirement of the Fire Department 
and Ms. Mertz added that this road was designed to allow for the whole street grid to 
be able to combine with the neighboring property should it be necessary in the future.  
Commissioner Rickard confirmed that the North Housing site is not required to be 
100% affordable housing and Ms. Thoe confirmed.   

 
 Richard Neveln, a member of the public, spoke regarding utilizing AC Transit at the 

North Housing property to provide a mode of transportation for residents and Ms. 
Thoe explained that yes, the City and AHA are confident that AC Transit will be able to 
service the neighborhood.  Bus Line 20 has expanded and helps connect more 
residents to transportation.  At the moment, AHA has a partnership with AC Transit for 
transit passes and plans on continuing to utilize the AC Transit system. Ms. Cooper 
added that offering bus passes to each household within North Housing is a very large 
and costly undertaking, so in order for something like this to move forward, other 
partners would need to help and finance the passes. 

 
 Vice Chair McCahan commented that last month there were concerns around Legal 

Counsel and SB 35 and thanked staff for coming back with more information and 
expressed his support for using SB 35.  Commissioner Hadid also stated his support 
for SB 35 and expressed concern for making sure that the North Housing site is 
cleaned up properly. Commissioner Kurrasch explained that the soil of this site has 
been looked at for over 15 years. Ms. Thoe added that the Navy has already 
performed site cleanup.  Carmel also performed a soil cleanup and both 
environmental agencies and AHA staff will be a part of the process to ensure that the 
area is safe.  Commission Chair Tamaoki commented that there is a difference 
between environmental impacts and environmental contamination. Chair Tamaoki 
confirmed that utilizing SB 35 does not change or relax any of the environmental 
requirements and Ms. Thoe agreed and explained that there are legal documents that 
supersede SB 35 in connection with the land transfer addressing environmental 
contamination. 

 
 Commissioner Kurrasch moved to accept the motion and Commissioner Hadid 

seconded motion: 
 
 

Yes: 6 Commissioner Chair Tamaoki, Commissioner Hadid, 
Commissioner Kay, Commissioner Kurrasch, Commissioner 
Rickard, and Commissioner Weinberg 

Excused: 1 Vice Chair McCahan 

 
 
10.  ORAL COMMUNICATIONS, Non-Agenda (Public Comment) 
 
  Richard Neveln, a member of the public, spoke regarding the individual home 

inspections and would like the examinations to be quicker.  Ms. Cooper stated that 
AHA staff would look into the scheduling side of this process, but legally AHA cannot 
limit the length of a HQS inspection.  Ms. Lisa Caldwell added that a tenant is not 

Page 8

Page 8 of 163



Regular Meeting of the Board of Commissioners                                              March 20, 2019 
 

                                                                                                           

required to wait in their unit for the inspector to arrive and has the option to request 
that an AHA manager be present in their unit during the time of the inspection. 

 
11.  COMMISSIONER COMMUNICATIONS, (Communications from the Commissioners) 
 
  None 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 

 
  There being no further business, Chair Tamaoki adjourned the meeting at 8:53 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________     _______________________ 
Vanessa M. Cooper       Kenji Tamaoki, Chair 
Executive Director/Secretary     Board of Commissioners 
 

Page 9

Page 9 of 163



Page 10

Page 10 of 163



Page 11

Page 11 of 163



Page 12

Page 12 of 163



Page 13

Page 13 of 163



Page 14

Page 14 of 163



Page 15

Page 15 of 163



Page 16

Page 16 of 163



Page 17

Page 17 of 163



Page 18

Page 18 of 163



Page 19

Page 19 of 163



Page 20

Page 20 of 163



Page 21

Page 21 of 163



Page 22

Page 22 of 163



Page 23

Page 23 of 163



Page 24

Page 24 of 163



Page 25

Page 25 of 163



Page 26

Page 26 of 163



Page 27

Page 27 of 163



Page 28

Page 28 of 163



Page 29

Page 29 of 163



Page 30

Page 30 of 163



Page 31

Page 31 of 163



Page 32

Page 32 of 163



Page 33

Page 33 of 163



Page 34

Page 34 of 163



Page 35

Page 35 of 163



Page 36

Page 36 of 163



Page 37

Page 37 of 163



Page 38

Page 38 of 163



Page 39

Page 39 of 163



Page 40

Page 40 of 163



DRAFT 

 Page 1 of 6 

SERVICES AGREEMENT 
FOR FISCAL YEARS 2019-2020 AND 2020-2021 

BY AND BETWEEN 
CITY OF ALAMEDA 

AND 
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA 

 
This Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and between the City of Alameda, a 
municipal corporation (“City”) and the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda, a public 
body, corporate and politic (“Authority”) effective July 1, 2019 (“Effective Date”). 
 

Recitals 
 
A. In August 1940, the Alameda City Council adopted a resolution to create the Housing 

Authority of the City of Alameda.  For nearly 75 years, the Authority has met the 
housing needs of low-income residents.   

B. On March 20, 2012, the Alameda City Council took action to establish the Authority 
as an entity separate from the City, governed by an independent Board of 
Commissioners (“Board”) appointed by the Mayor and managed by an executive 
director reporting to the Board. 

C. The Authority builds, owns and manages affordable housing and manages and 
implements affordable housing programs within the City of Alameda, which may be 
funded by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development, the 
State of California and other local funds.  The Authority employs people, who are not 
City employees and not entitled to any City-sponsored benefits. The Authority offices 
at 701 Atlantic Avenue, Alameda, are separate from City offices. 

D. The City is the recipient of certain federal funds that may be used exclusively for the 
purposes of community development and affordable housing programs and projects.  
The City also receives revenue through the payment of In-Lieu fees and Affordable 
Housing Unit fees that may be used only for affordable housing related purposes.  

E. The City has determined that it can best serve the needs of the citizens of Alameda 
with respect to provision of community development and affordable housing related 
services by contracting with the Authority to manage and implement services as set 
forth below.  

F. The Authority is willing to provide management and implementation of said services 
in exchange for the consideration set forth below. 

G. The Authority is also desirous of continuing to obtain additional services from the 
Alameda Police Department to ensure safety at its housing developments and the City 
is willing to provide such additional police services in exchange for the consideration 
set forth below. 

Page 41

Page 41 of 163



DRAFT 

 Page 2 of 6 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing Recitals and the mutual promises 
and agreements set forth below, the adequacy of which is mutually acknowledged, the 
parties agree as follows: 

 
Agreement 

 
1. Term of Agreement 

This Agreement commences as of the Effective Date and terminates on June 30, 
2021.   
 

2. Housing Services Defined 
Housing services and the corresponding funding for provision of those Housing 
Department Services are detailed in the City’s adopted Fiscal Year 2019-2020 and 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget.    The referenced budget section is attached to this 
Agreement as Exhibit A.  The Authority’s and the City’s roles in providing these 
services are outlined in Exhibit B attached to this Agreement. 
 

3. Housing Services to be Provided 
In exchange for the funding provided in Exhibit A, the Authority agrees to implement 
the projects and programs described in Exhibits A and B on behalf of the City.  It is 
understood that the Authority shall not be responsible for providing any services the 
cost of which exceeds the funding made available from the City. In the event of a 
significant variance in the amount of federal or local funding available during the term 
of this contract, the scope of services will be renegotiated and this Agreement will be 
amended.   
   

4. Staffing  
In order to administer the budgeted projects and programs shown in Exhibit A and 
related services described in Exhibit B, the City delegates authority to the Authority 
Executive Director to administer the housing programs and to approve and incur 
expenses related to tasks outlined in Exhibit B. The City agrees to reimburse the 
Authority for the actual costs of staff, plus benefits, and for certain expenses, which 
costs, benefits, and expenses are set forth in Exhibit B.     
 

5. Alameda Police Services 
At the request of the Authority Executive Director, or designee, the Alameda Police 
Department will provide the services outlined in the “Police Services Scope of Work” 
which services are additional to regular patrol and emergency response.  The Police 
Services Scope of Work is attached to this Agreement as Exhibit C.  

Page 42

Page 42 of 163



DRAFT 

 Page 3 of 6 

 
Through June 30, 2021, the Alameda Police Department shall invoice the Authority 
on a monthly basis for additional services at the prices set forth on the attached Exhibit 
D.  Payment shall be remitted in full within fourteen (14) calendar days of invoice date.   
 

6. Authority Facilities, Equipment Usage and Related Administrative Expenses 
The Authority agrees to provide office space and related administration for the staff 
charged with administration of the housing programs.  City agrees to compensate 
Authority for such use as outlined in Exhibit B. The Authority shall invoice the City on 
a quarterly basis for use of Authority facilities and equipment at the prices set forth in 
Exhibit B.  Payment shall be remitted in full within fourteen (14) calendar days of 
invoice date.  
  

7. Indemnification 
 City shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Authority, its officers, employees, and 

agents from and against any and all claims, expenses, liabilities, or costs for personal 
injury, property damage, legal proceedings, or of whatsoever nature as may arise as 
a result of or in connection with any act, omission, or negligence of City or its officers,’ 
employees,’ or agents’ performance under this Agreement. 

 
 Authority shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless City, its officers, employees, and 

agents from and against any and all claims, expenses, liabilities, or costs for personal 
injury, property damage, legal proceedings, or of whatsoever nature as may arise as 
a result of or in connection with any act, omission, or negligence of Authority or its 
officers,’ employees,’ or agents’ performance under this Agreement. 

 
8. Workers’ Compensation Insurance 
 In accordance with the provisions of the California Labor Code and all applicable law, 

City shall secure at its own expense and maintain during the contract term, workers’ 
compensation insurance coverage for its employees as necessary to protect City and 
its employees under the Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Safety Act.  Such 
insurance shall be in a standard form and sufficient to relieve Authority for such claims 
and/or liability. 

 
 In accordance with the provisions of the California Labor Code and all applicable law, 

Authority shall secure at its own expense and maintain during the contract term, 
workers’ compensation insurance coverage for its employees as necessary to protect 
Authority and its employees under the Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Safety 
Act.  Such insurance shall be in a standard form and sufficient to relieve City for such 
claims and/or liability. 

Page 43

Page 43 of 163



DRAFT 

 Page 4 of 6 

9. Liability Insurance 
 City shall at its own expense, maintain and keep effective during the contract term, 

insurance and/or self-insurance to cover comprehensive public liability for bodily 
injury, including death, and property damage in an amount not less than $1,000,000 
for any one occurrence. 

 
 Authority shall at its own expense, maintain and keep effective during the contract 

term, insurance and/or self-insurance to cover comprehensive public liability for bodily 
injury, including death, and property damage in an amount not less than $1,000,000 
for any one occurrence. 
 

10. Records 
 City and Authority shall maintain complete and accurate records that relate to 

performance of services under this Agreement.  Records shall be maintained in 
sufficient detail to permit an evaluation of service rendered under this Agreement.  All 
such records shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles and shall be clearly identified and readily accessible.  Free access shall be 
provided to the representatives of each party at all proper times to audit books and 
records.  Such records, together with supporting documents, shall be maintained for 
a period of six years and three months after receipt of final payment. 

 
11. Notices 
 All notices, demands, requests, or approvals to be given under this Agreement shall 

be given in writing and conclusively shall be deemed served when delivered 
personally or through email, fax, or the interoffice mail delivery system.  All such 
notices, demands, requests, or approvals shall be addressed to: 

 
 Authority: Executive Director, Housing Authority 
  701 Atlantic Avenue 
  Alameda, CA 94501 
 
 City: City Manager, City of Alameda 
  2263 Santa Clara Avenue 
  Alameda, CA 94501 

 
12 Attorneys’ Fees 
 In the event that legal action is brought by either party against the other in connection 

with this Agreement, the prevailing party in any such litigation shall be entitled to 
receive reimbursement from the other of its legal costs, in addition to whatever other 
sums may be due as a judgment or as an agreed settlement amount.  Such legal costs 

Page 44

Page 44 of 163



DRAFT 

 Page 5 of 6 

shall include, but not be limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees, court costs, expert 
witness fees, and other documented expenses. 

 
13. Assignment and Delegation 
 Neither party shall assign nor delegate its rights and/or duties under this Agreement 

without first obtaining prior written consent to the assignment and/or delegation.  Any 
assignment or delegation made by one party without prior written consent will render 
the Agreement voidable at the sole discretion of the other party. 

 
14. Severability 
 The provisions of this Agreement shall be severable to the extent that should any of 

its provisions or terms be declared void whole or in part by operation of law or 
agreement of the parties, the remainder of the provisions or terms not expressly 
declared void shall remain enforceable and in full effect. 

 
15. Integration and Modification 
 This Agreement represents the entire integrated Agreement between City and 

Authority, supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either 
written or oral, between the parties, and may be amended only by written instrument 
signed by the authorized representatives of City and Authority. 

 
16. Termination 
 Authority or City may terminate this Agreement upon 180 days written notice to the 

other party.  Upon termination of this Agreement, each party shall pay to the other 
party that portion of compensation specified in this Agreement that is earned and 
unpaid prior to the effective date of termination. 

 
17. Compliances 
 City and Authority shall comply with all applicable State and Federal laws and 

regulations. 
 
18. Conflict of Law 
 This Agreement shall be interpreted under, and enforced by the laws of the State of 

California excepting any law or regulation required by Federal funding.  The 
Agreement and obligations of the parties are subject to all valid laws, orders, rules 
and regulations of the authorities having jurisdiction over this Agreement, or the 
successors of those authorities. 

 
 
 

Page 45

Page 45 of 163



DRAFT 

 Page 6 of 6 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused the Services Agreement to be 
executed on the day and year first above named. 
 
 
CITY OF ALAMEDA  HOUSING AUTHORITY 
  OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA 
 
 
 
    
Eric J. Levitt  Vanessa M. Cooper 
City Manager  Executive Director 
 
 
    
Date       Date 

Page 46

Page 46 of 163



Exhibit A

DRAFT

Page 47

Page 47 of 163



DRAFT

Page 48

Page 48 of 163



DRAFT

Page 49

Page 49 of 163



DRAFT

Page 50

Page 50 of 163



DRAFT

Page 51

Page 51 of 163



 Exhibit B – Page 1 of 1 

EXHIBIT B 
HOUSING SERVICES SCOPE OF WORK 

 
The Authority shall: 
 
1) Administer affordable housing programs and housing-related services on behalf of 

the City of Alameda, as defined by the Agreement, and the programs set forth 
herein.  Programs, and related services, include implementing the Community 
Development Block Grant Program (“CDBG”), HOME Program, Down Payment 
Assistance/First Time Homebuyer Program, Inclusionary Housing Program, 
Administering Affordable Housing Unit/Fee and Affordable Housing In-Lieu Funds, 
developing affordable housing, managing the affordable housing loan portfolio and 
providing general oversight of the Legally-Binding Agreements while in force.   

2) Procure services and approve payment of invoices related to the described 
activities.  

3) Provide affordable housing information resources to private and public parties, 
represent the City at the regional, state and federal levels to promote housing 
programs and advocate for funding. 

4) Prepare and administer the bi-annual Housing Department budget and approve 
contracts up to $75,000. Prepare City Council agenda items for contracts above this 
amount. 

5) Complete steps required by the United States Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (“HUD”) for the Community Development Block Grant (“CDBG”) 
program.  This includes needs assessment, public hearings, and the appropriate 
staff reports, in consultation with the City Manager’s and City Attorney’s Offices, to 
recommend to the City Council the annual proposal for the CDBG program, 
including authorization for program expenditures.  Once the City Council approves 
the CDBG program, the Authority will implement it pursuant to the terms of this 
Agreement. 

 
The City shall:  
1) Delegate authority to the Authority Executive Director or designee to administer the 

housing programs and to approve and incur expenses related to tasks outlined 
above.  

2) Provide reimbursement for salaries and benefits, including workers' compensation 
coverage, pension, medical insurance, life insurance, long-term disability insurance, 
dental insurance, and all other salaries and benefits for the Housing Authority 
employees that administer the City housing programs. 

3) Compensate and reimburse Authority for all expenses for the use of Authority office 
space provided to administer the Housing Department within the Authority offices, 
including rent and utilities, use of equipment, postage, etc.  Rent and utilities are 
based on the proportion of office space provided to administer the housing programs 
and other supply and training costs are based on actual expenses.       

 

Page 52

Page 52 of 163



 Exhibit C – Page 1 of 2 

EXHIBIT C 
POLICE SERVICES SCOPE OF WORK 

 
The Police Department will designate and assign two officers to the Authority.  The 
designated officers and the Police Department shall:  
 
a. Provide community policing services for residents of Authority units;  
b. Coordinate efforts to solve youth problems, such as truancy, vandalism, and graffiti;  
c. Provide advice concerning personal security and crime prevention advice and/or 

training for Authority clients; 
d. Investigate suspected criminal activity of or in any way related to Authority clients;  
e. Provide testimony in unlawful detainer actions of the Authority when requested by 

Authority and provide expert witness testimony in other judicial or administrative 
proceedings at which the Police Department's provisions of these special law 
enforcements services to the Authority is an issue, when requested by Authority;  

f. Investigate suspected program fraud and reporting to the Authority, including 
complaints of unauthorized household members living in Section 8 and Authority-
owned units (i.e., identifying unauthorized household members and obtaining proof 
of residence), complaints involving alleged criminal activity such as drug activity 
occurring in or around Section 8 tenants and landlords, monitoring homes of 
possible business-related activities, running checks to confirm or deny addresses 
listed in verifying residency of applicants, assisting in verifying income of applicants 
and clients;  

g. Enforce, through citations or warnings, parking rules at Authority properties 
concerning Vehicle Code violations, such as vehicles parked in red zones, etc.  The 
Authority will be responsible for posting proper signage concerning no parking 
regulations, e.g., red zones, resident parking, etc. on Authority property and 
Authority will arrange for all tow requests from Authority property other than vehicles 
towed related to criminal activity;  

h. Attend monthly meetings of the Board of Commissioners until 9:30 p.m. (3rd 
Wednesday of the month), annual Town Hall meetings with tenants (4 meetings at 
various sites), Rent Review Advisory Committee meetings until 9:30 p.m. (2 per 
month), bi-weekly meetings with Property Management department, resident 
activities at Authority-owned sites and other meetings upon Authority staff or Board 
requests;  

i. Walk Authority-owned properties at least twice a week, respond to welfare checks 
requested by Authority staff (requests are to be made to APD Dispatch, not the 
individual officers), provide patrols each day from July 1 through July 4 and, as to 
the Authority office building and on a year round basis, at least once a night. 

j. Submit reports detailing policing activities, both verbal and written, including at least 
one verbal report biweekly, one written report per month showing statistics by 
complex/program for budgeting purposes and citations issued at Authority-owned 
sites by the officers assigned to the Authority, and one written quarterly report which 

Page 53

Page 53 of 163



 Exhibit C – Page 2 of 2 

compiles the monthly statistics and compares them with the City population as a 
whole;  

k. Maintain records of all reports for a minimum of two (2) years, in accordance with the 
City’s Records Retention Schedule, and maintaining access to those records for 
Authority staff or personnel of the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development, or similar Authority in the event of audit of the policing services being 
provided;  

 
l. Provide management support, training, equipment and supplies, and other 

employee-related services to the officers assigned to provide services for the 
Authority;  

m. Provide criminal background checks of applicants who are offered Authority 
employment;  

n. Provide finger printing services for Authority personnel as needed; and   
o. The City and Authority recognize that the scheduling and deployment of police 

officers contemplated in this Agreement must be set and may need to be adjusted 
periodically based on the experience and conditions which exist at any given time.  
Further, the parties recognize that Police Department billing for services rendered 
hereunder must conform to Federal and State regulations applicable to the Authority.  
Accordingly, the Police Chief of the City and the Executive Director of the Authority 
are empowered to enter into a Police Department Deployment and Scheduling Plan 
consistent with this Agreement which will detail the deployment of City Police 
Department personnel, services and billing formats consistent with this Agreement. 

 

Page 54

Page 54 of 163



 Exhibit D – Page 1 of 1 

EXHIBIT D 
POLICE SERVICES COMPENSATION 

 
 
The Authority shall compensate the Police Department for services rendered per this 
Agreement the sum of two hundred ten thousand dollars and zero cents ($210,000.00) 
annually.   
 
The Police Department shall invoice the Authority monthly in monthly increments of 
seventeen thousand five hundred dollars and zero cents ($17,500.00).  
 
The Authority shall remit payment within 14 calendar days from the date the invoice is 
received. 
 

Page 55

Page 55 of 163



Page 56

Page 56 of 163



Page 57

Page 57 of 163



 

  
HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA  

  
PROCUREMENT POLICY  

  
  
Established for the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (hereinafter, “Housing 
Authority”) by Adoption of the Board of Commissioners, this Procurement Policy (Policy) 
complies with the Annual Contributions Contract (ACC) between the Housing Authority 
and the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), Federal 
Regulations at 2 CFR §200.317 through §200.326, Procurement Standards, and 
applicable State and Local laws. 

The Housing Authority has used the HUD Procurement Handbook as a guide in 
developing this Procurement Policy.  
  
GENERAL  
The Housing Authority will:  
• Provide a procurement system of quality and integrity;   
• Make all feasible efforts to ensure that small and minority-owned businesses, 

women’s business enterprises, and disabled veteran businesses are used when 
possible;   

• Provide for the fair and equitable treatment of persons or firms involved in Housing 
Authority procurements;   

• Ensure that supplies and services (including construction) are procured efficiently, 
effectively, and at the most favorable prices available to the Housing Authority;   

• Promote competition in contracting; and   
• Assure that Housing Authority purchasing actions are in compliance with applicable 

HUD regulations and all applicable federal, and HUD regulations, state and local laws.  
  
APPLICATION  
This Policy applies to all procurement actions of the Housing Authority, regardless of the 
source of funds, except as noted under “exclusions” below.  Nothing in the Policy will 
prevent the Housing Authority from complying with the terms and conditions of any grant 
(e.g., CDBG), contract, gift or bequest that is otherwise consistent with the law.    
  
EXCLUSIONS  
This policy does not govern the following:  
  
• Administrative fees earned under the Section 8 voucher program,   
• Award of vouchers to tenants under the Section 8 program,   

Page 58

Page 58 of 163



PROCUREMENT POLICY  
  
  

  
  
Policy  2 
 January 20, 2016April 17, 2019 

• Execution of landlord Housing Authority Payments contracts under the Section 8 
Housing Choice Voucher Program, or  

• Execution of Agreements to Enter into Housing Assistance Payment (AHAP) contracts 
under the Section 8 Project-based Voucher Program.   
 

The Housing Authority will comply with state and local procurement rules.  
 
CHANGES IN LAWS AND REGULATIONS  
In the event an applicable law or regulation is modified or eliminated, or a new law or 
regulation is adopted, the revised law or regulation will, to the extent inconsistent with this 
Policy, automatically supersede this Policy.  

Most procurement information that is not proprietary is a matter of public record and will 
be available to the public to the extent allowed by law.  provided in the Freedom of 
Information Act.  
  
PRINCIPLES  
Members of the Board of Commissioners, Housing Authority employees, and any others 
serving in an official position or acting as an agent of the Housing Authority will discharge 
their duties impartially to ensure fair competitive access to procurement opportunities by 
responsible contractors.  In addition, officers, employees and agents will conduct 
themselves in such a manner as to foster the public’s confidence in the integrity of the 
Housing Authority’s procurement organization and process.  Any attempt to realize 
personal gain through Housing Authority employment or to serve as an officer or agent of 
the Housing Authority through actions inconsistent with the proper discharge of duties is 
a breach of public trust.  
  
ETHICS IN PUBLIC CONTRACTING  
The Housing Authority hereby establishes this code of conduct regarding procurement 
issues and actions and will implement a system of sanctions for violations.  

Conflict of Interest  
No Housing Authority officer, employee, or agent will participate directly or indirectly in 
the selection, award, or administration of a contract if a conflict of interest, either real or 
apparent, would be involved.  Such a conflict would arise when a one of the persons listed 
below has a financial or any other type of interest in a firm competing for the award:  
1. A member of the Board of Commissioners, employee, or agent involved in making the 

award;  

2. His/her relative (including father, mother, son, daughter, brother, sister, uncle, aunt, 
first cousin, nephew, niece, husband, wife, father-in-law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, 

Page 59

Page 59 of 163



PROCUREMENT POLICY  
  
  

  
  
Policy  3 
 January 20, 2016April 17, 2019 

daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, stepfather, stepmother, stepson, 
stepdaughter, stepbrother, stepsister, half brother, half sister, or domestic partner and 
equivalent relationships);  

3. His/her partner; or  

4. An organization which employs or is negotiating to employ, or has an arrangement 
concerning prospective employment of any of the above.  

None of the persons mentioned above nor any of its contractors or their subcontractors 
may enter into any contract, subcontract, or arrangement in connection with a project 
under an ACC with HUD or funded through any other Housing Authority source in which 
they have an interest, direct or indirect, during his/her tenure and for one year thereafter.  
 
If the conflict is arising from an organizational conflict of interest, such as with an affiliate 
of the Housing Authority, the award process shall be reviewed by a 3rd party agency, 
including consultants, other Housing Authority staff, or HUD.     
  
GRATUITIES, KICKBACKS, AND USE OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION  
To protect the integrity of the procurement system and to ensure that contracts are 
awarded fairly based on merit, without improper influence, all Housing Authority 
solicitations and contracts above the small purchase threshold will include clause(s) 
advising prospective contractors of the prohibitions against gratuities and kickbacks.    

No Housing Authority officer or agent will ask for or accept gratuities, favors, or items of 
any value from any contractor, potential contractor, or party to any subcontract, and shall 
not knowingly use confidential information for actual or anticipated personal gain.  

No current employee, or former employee within one year of employment, will ask for or 
accept gratuities, favors, or items of any value from any contractor, potential contractor, 
or party to any subcontract, and shall not knowingly use confidential information for actual 
or anticipated personal gain.  

Prohibition Against Contingent Fees  
Contractors wanting to do business with the Housing Authority must not hire a person to 
solicit or secure a contract for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, 
except for bona fide established commercial selling agencies.  

Sanctions  
Federal, state and local laws will be enforced by the Board of Commissioners and 
Executive Director.  Appropriate sanctions for violations of the standards of conduct 
outlined in this policy will be imposed.  
The appropriate sanction of Housing Authority officials and employees will be determined 
in cooperation with the General Counsel and the Human Resources Director.  Sanctions 
may include civil and administrative remedies, up to and including termination.  

Page 60

Page 60 of 163



PROCUREMENT POLICY  
  
  

  
  
Policy  4 
 January 20, 2016April 17, 2019 

For Contractors, the Contractors found in violation may be referred to the Housing 
Authority General Counsel.  The level of sanction will be determined in cooperation with 
the General Counsel and the Human Resources Director based upon the severity of the 
violation, but could include actions up to and including debarment from all local and 
federal procurements.  

The Housing Authority will recover the value of anything received by an employee or a 
former employee in breach of the ethical standards by confiscating the items or by 
charging the violator for any and all gratuities received.  All procedures will be in 
accordance with due process requirements as outlined in the Housing Authority’s 
Personnel Policy, and existing law.  Remedies against contractors may include 
suspension or debarment.   

  
PURCHASING AUTHORITY AND METHODS  
The following dollar amounts determine who has the authority to authorize purchases, 
including awarding contracts, and what type of procurement method will take place:  
 

DOLLAR THRESHOLD  
AHA’s Policy 

AUTHORITY  TYPE OF 
PROCUREMENT  

Over $250,000  Board of 
Commissioners  

Formal (Sealed Bids) or 
Competitive Proposals  

$250,000 and less  Executive Director  Formal/Small  
   

 $25,000 and less  Department Directors  Small/Micro  
$100 and less All Employees subject 

to supervisor approval 
Petty 

  
The regulation defines procurement in the following manner: $210,000 or less = “micro”, 
$250,000 or less = “small”, above $1250,000 = “formal”. 
Petty Cash Purchases  
Purchases under $100 may be handled through the use of a petty cash account.  The 
Housing Authority will ensure that security is maintained and only authorized individuals 
have access to the account.  The account will be reconciled and replenished periodically.  

Small and Micro Purchases  
For purchases over $210,000 and not exceeding $1250,000, the Housing Authority may 
use small purchase procedures.  Under small purchase procedures, the Housing 
Authority may obtain a reasonable number of quotes and the means of submittal can be 
informal.  The Housing Authority will award the purchase to the qualified vendor that 
provides the best value to the Housing Authority.    

Page 61

Page 61 of 163



PROCUREMENT POLICY  
  
  

  
  
Policy  5 
 January 20, 2016April 17, 2019 

Purchases of supplies and services costing less than $210,000 may be made without 
soliciting competitive quotations if the Manager considers the price to be reasonable (e.g., 
based on recent research, experience, or purchases).  To the extent practicable, the 
Housing Authority will distribute micro purchases equitably among qualified vendors.  
Nothing precludes a manager from obtaining informal quotes for micro purchases to 
ensure that the purchase is made at the best price. 

A cost analysis is required for all projects greater than $1250,000.     

Formal (Sealed Bids)  
Sealed bidding will be used for all contracts that exceed the small purchase threshold and 
that are not competitive proposals or non-competitive proposals, as these terms are 
defined in this document.  Under sealed bids, the Housing Authority will solicit bids 
publicly; and award a firm fixed-price contract (e.g., lump sum or unit price) to the 
responsible bidder whose bid, conforming with all material terms and conditions of the 
Invitation for Bids (IFB), is the lowest in price.    

Sealed bidding is the preferred method for procuring construction, supply, and 
noncomplex service contracts that are expected to exceed $1250,000.  Sealed bidding is 
the preferred method for procuring construction contracts.  

Cooperative Purchasing/Intergovernmental Agreements  
The Housing Authority may participate in federal, State of California, or local cooperative 
or intergovernmental agreements to purchase or use common supplies, equipment, or 
services.  The Housing Authority may also contract directly with a firm that has a 
competitively-solicited contract with a local government agency. The decision to use an 
intergovernmental agreement or competitively-solicited contract with a local government 
agency instead of conducting a direct procurement will be based on economy and 
efficiency.    

Competitive Proposals  
The competitive proposal method permits consideration of technical factors other than 
price (e.g., technical expertise, past experience, quality of proposed staffing, etc.).  The 
price, schedule, technical requirements, type of contract and other terms are negotiable.  
Contract award will be made on the basis of the proposal that represents the best overall 
value to the Housing Authority, considering price and other factors.    

The Ccompetitive proposals process, utilizing , more commonly called a Request for 
Proposals (RFP) or a Request for Qualifications (RFQ) is the preferred method for 
procuring professional and other services that will exceed the small purchase threshold.    

Page 62

Page 62 of 163



PROCUREMENT POLICY  
  
  

  
  
Policy  6 
 January 20, 2016April 17, 2019 

Noncompetitive Proposals  
Procurement by noncompetitive proposals (sole-source) may be used only when the 
award of a contract is not feasible using small purchase procedures, sealed bids, 
cooperative purchasing, or competitive proposals, and if one of the following applies:  
1. The item is available only from a single source, based on a good faith review of 

available sources;  

2. The Board of Commissioners by resolutionExecutive Director has determined that an 
emergency exists that seriously threatens the public health, welfare, or safety, or 
endangers property, or would otherwise cause serious injury to the Housing Authority, 
as may arise by reason of a flood, earthquake, epidemic, riot, equipment failure, or 
similar event.  In such cases, there must be an immediate and serious need for 
supplies, services, or construction such that the need cannot be met through any of 
the other procurement methods, and the emergency procurement will be limited to 
those supplies, services, or construction necessary to meet the emergency and any 
expenditures over $250,000 will be reported at the next Board of Commissioners 
meeting; or  

3. After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined inadequate.  
  
Contract Modifications  
The Executive Director is authorized to approve contract modifications (i.e., change 
orders, addendums) not to exceed the cumulative authorization limit.  A contract 
modification that raises the cumulative total of the procurement to an amount exceeding 
the Executive Director’s authorization limit, requires approval by the Board of 
Commissioners.  For example, an $80,000 change order to a $200,000 contract would 
bring the cumulative procurement to $280,000.  This change order would require approval 
by the Board of Commissioners.    

CREDIT CARD PURCHASING  
Credit card usage will follow the rules for all other small purchases.  Safeguards are in 
place to assure that cards are used only for intended purposes (i.e., dollar limits, limits on 
types of purchases, etc.).  
  
CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATIONS  
The Housing Authority will not award any contract until the lowest bid or most highly 
qualified proposal has been determined to be responsive and the contractor determined 
to be responsible.  In general, to be responsible, the contractor must have adequate 
financial resources to perform the contract or the ability to obtain them; be able to comply 
with the required delivery or performance schedule; have a satisfactory performance 
record, have the necessary organization, experience, construction and technical 

Page 63

Page 63 of 163



PROCUREMENT POLICY  
  
  

  
  
Policy  7 
 January 20, 2016April 17, 2019 

expertise, equipment and facilities; and not be suspended, debarred, or under a HUD-
imposed Limited Denial of Participation (LDP).  
  
CONTRACT CLAUSES  
All contracts above the small purchase limit or where the standard contract, approved by 
the Housing Authority General Counsel, is not used will be approved as to form by the 
Housing Authority General Counsel.  All HUD-required clauses and certifications for 
contracts of more than $10250,000, as well as any forms/clauses as required by HUD for 
small purchases, shall be used in all corresponding solicitations and contracts when 
required by the funding source. HUD-required Contract clauses can be found at Appendix 
II to Part 200 under Part 2 of the Code of Federal Regulations.    
  
APPEALS AND REMEDIES  
The Housing Authority’s Bid Protest and Appeals procedure is available to all contractors 
and delineates how to make an appeal based on the dollar amounts involved. It includes 
an informal in-house process for appeals involving dollar amounts up to and including 
$100,000.  A formal appeal may be made involving solicitations over $100,000 to the 
Executive Director or designee.   
  
DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY  
While the Executive Director is responsible for ensuring that the Housing Authority’s 
procurements comply with this policy, the Executive Director may delegate procurement 
authority as is necessary and appropriate to conduct the business of the agency.  

In accordance with this delegation of authority, the Executive Director will, where 
necessary, establish operational procedures to implement this Policy.    
  
DOCUMENTATION  
The Housing Authority will maintain records sufficient to detail the significant history of 
each procurement action.  Records will be maintained for a period of not less than six 
years after final payment and all matters pertaining to the contract are closed.    
  
  
  
Adopted by the Board of Commissioners on April 17, 2013.  
Revised by the Board of Commissioners on August 20, 2014. 
Revised by the Board of Commissioners on January 20, 2016. 
Revised by the Board of Commissioners on April 17, 2019.  
 
  

Page 64

Page 64 of 163



Page 65

Page 65 of 163



Page 66

Page 66 of 163



Page 67

Page 67 of 163



Page 68

Page 68 of 163



Page 69

Page 69 of 163



Page 70

Page 70 of 163



Page 71

Page 71 of 163



Page 72

Page 72 of 163



Page 73

Page 73 of 163



Page 74

Page 74 of 163



Page 75

Page 75 of 163



Page 76

Page 76 of 163



Page 77

Page 77 of 163



Tw
o 

Ye
ar

 P
la

n 
20

17
-2

01
9

A
tta

ch
m

en
t A

:
Tw

o-
Ye

ar
 W

or
k 

P
la

n 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

7 
to

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

9
U

pd
at

ed
 A

pr
il 

20
19

D
e
p

t.
T

a
s

k
D

e
a

d
li

n
e

N
e
w

 D
e

a
d

li
n

e
: 

J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
8

 
A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

9
 U

p
d

a
te

N
e

w
 

D
e

a
d

li
n

e
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
 G

o
a

l

A
ll

U
pd

at
e 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
w

rit
te

n 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 fo
r a

ll 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts

on
go

in
g

A
ll

R
eb

id
 a

ll 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

th
at

 e
xp

ire
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
pe

rio
d 

as
 n

ee
de

d
on

go
in

g
A

ll
P

ur
ge

 s
to

ra
ge

 a
re

as
 a

nd
 o

rg
an

iz
e 

pa
pe

r d
oc

um
en

ts
 e

ve
ry

 1
2 

m
on

th
s

on
go

in
g

A
ll

D
ev

el
op

 Q
ua

lit
y 

C
on

tro
l m

ea
su

re
s 

fo
r a

ll 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts

Q
2 

20
19

E
xe

c
M

an
ag

e 
B

oa
rd

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t, 

on
bo

ar
di

ng
 a

nd
 o

ng
oi

ng
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
an

d 
tra

in
in

g
on

go
in

g

E
xe

c
P

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 re
gi

on
al

 e
ffo

rts
 to

 e
xp

an
d 

M
TW

; s
ee

k 
fle

xi
bi

lit
y 

op
tio

ns
 a

s 
ne

ed
ed

 fo
r 

A
H

A
 th

ou
gh

 w
ai

ve
rs

 w
he

re
 p

os
si

bl
e.

 
on

go
in

g

E
xe

c
A

dv
oc

at
e 

fo
r h

ou
si

ng
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

lo
ca

lly
 a

nd
 a

t t
he

 s
ta

te
 a

nd
 fe

de
ra

l l
ev

el
 th

at
 e

xp
an

d 
ho

us
in

g 
op

tio
ns

 in
 A

la
m

ed
a 

fo
r l

ow
 in

co
m

e 
fa

m
ilie

s
on

go
in

g

E
xe

c
H

ire
, o

nb
oa

rd
 a

nd
 tr

ai
n 

Fi
na

nc
e 

D
ire

ct
or

Q
1 

20
18

N
ew

ly
 h

ire
d 

D
ire

ct
or

 re
si

gn
ed

; r
ec

ru
it 

ag
ai

n
Q

2 
20

19
E

xe
c

H
ire

, o
nb

oa
rd

 a
nd

 tr
ai

n 
D

ep
ut

y 
E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

Q
1 

20
18

Q
4 

20
18

In
 p

ro
ce

ss
Q

2 
20

19
E

xe
c

Tr
ai

n 
R

en
t P

ro
gr

am
 D

ire
ct

or
Q

1 
20

18
D

ire
ct

or
 h

as
 a

lm
os

t c
om

pl
et

ed
 h

is
 fi

rs
t y

ea
r

E
xe

c
P

ro
vi

de
 b

oa
rd

 m
em

o 
up

da
tin

g 
S

uc
ce

ss
io

n 
P

la
n

Q
1 

20
18

D
on

e.
 P

ro
vi

de
 p

er
io

di
c 

up
da

te
s 

to
 B

oa
rd

 (i
e,

 
tu

rn
ov

er
 a

nd
 p

ro
m

ot
io

n 
da

ta
, s

tra
te

gi
es

)
E

xe
c

C
om

pl
et

e 
Le

ad
 M

O
U

 w
ith

 C
ou

nt
y 

H
ea

lth
 d

ep
t.

Q
2 

20
18

O
n 

ho
ld

 w
ith

 c
ou

nt
y

E
xe

c
R

ev
ie

w
 o

pt
io

ns
 fo

r s
tre

am
lin

ed
 c

os
t a

llo
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

pr
op

os
e 

a 
re

vi
se

d 
C

os
t A

llo
ca

tio
n 

P
la

n 
m

et
ho

d 
fo

r 2
01

8-
19

Q
2 

20
18

 
Q

2 
20

19
D

el
ay

ed
 to

 2
02

0-
20

21
 b

ud
ge

t

E
xe

c
D

ev
el

op
 A

FF
H

 p
la

n 
fo

r A
H

A
 a

nd
 C

ity
 in

 c
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 A
la

m
ed

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
en

tit
ie

s
Q

3 
20

18
O

n 
ho

ld
 w

ith
 c

ou
nt

y

E
xe

c
C

om
pl

et
e 

R
FP

 p
ro

ce
ss

 fo
r a

ud
ito

rs
Q

4 
20

17
R

e-
is

su
ed

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

19
 a

nd
 e

va
lu

at
in

g 
se

le
ct

io
n

E
xe

c
C

on
du

ct
 V

is
io

n 
an

d 
S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
la

nn
in

g 
P

ro
ce

ss
Q

4 
20

18
C

om
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 d
ra

ft 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

pl
an

 
su

bm
itt

ed
 to

 B
oa

rd
E

xe
c

D
ev

el
op

 m
ea

su
re

s 
fo

r S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

la
n 

an
d 

V
is

io
n;

 im
pl

em
en

t m
ea

su
re

m
en

t s
ys

te
m

s 
Q

4 
20

18
Im

 p
ro

ce
ss

Q
4 

20
19

Fi
na

nc
e

C
om

pl
et

e 
au

di
t p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 fi

na
l F

A
D

S
 s

ub
m

is
si

on
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 3

0
on

go
in

g
D

on
e 

fo
r 2

01
7-

18
Fi

na
nc

e
Im

pl
em

en
t Y

ar
di

 b
ud

ge
t m

od
ul

e 
fo

r 2
01

8-
19

 b
ud

ge
t a

nd
 re

po
rti

ng
. 

Q
1 

20
18

Q
2 

20
19

N
ot

 d
on

e
Q

4 
20

19

Fi
na

nc
e

H
ire

 s
ta

ff,
 tr

ai
n 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
p 

co
he

si
ve

 te
am

Q
2 

20
18

R
e-

st
ar

t r
ec

ru
itm

en
t f

or
 D

ire
ct

or
 a

nd
 

C
on

to
lle

r; 
ad

d 
th

ird
 S

pe
ci

al
is

t

Q
1 

(C
on

tro
lle

r),
 

Q
2 

(o
th

er
s)

Fi
na

nc
e

P
ro

vi
de

 fi
na

nc
ia

l s
ta

bi
lit

y 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

la
n

Q
2 

20
18

Fi
na

nc
e

P
re

se
nt

 a
 m

em
o 

to
 th

e 
B

oa
rd

  r
e 

pr
ef

un
di

ng
 o

f G
A

S
B

 6
8 

 (u
nf

un
de

d 
pe

ns
io

n 
lia

bi
lit

ie
s)

Q
2 

20
18

Q
4 

20
18

Fi
rs

t m
em

o 
do

ne
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

01
8.

 F
ol

lo
w

 u
p 

du
e 

M
ay

 2
01

9
Q

2 
20

19

Fi
na

nc
e

C
om

pl
et

e 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
t r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
 o

f N
an

 M
cK

ay
 re

vi
ew

 o
f F

in
an

ce
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

Q
4 

20
18

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s

Fi
na

nc
e

C
om

pl
et

e 
re

vi
si

on
 o

f c
ha

rt 
of

 a
cc

ou
nt

s
Q

1 
20

18
D

on
e 

H
C

D
M

an
ag

e 
C

IP
s 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

ud
ge

ts
 a

nd
 c

ap
ita

l n
ee

ds
O

ng
oi

ng
20

19
-2

02
0 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 to
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 b
ud

ge
t 

cy
cl

e 
th

at
 is

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
in

 M
ay

O
ng

oi
ng

H
C

D
N

or
th

 H
ou

si
ng

 S
ite

: C
om

pl
et

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l a

ss
es

sm
en

t; 
up

da
te

 s
ite

 s
ur

ve
y;

 g
ai

n 
si

te
 

co
nt

ro
l; 

co
m

pl
et

e 
de

m
ol

iti
on

.
Q

1 
20

19

Tr
an

sf
er

 is
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 b

y 
A

pr
il 

30
. 

E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l C
le

ar
an

ce
 fr

om
 R

eg
ul

at
or

s 
in

 
M

ay
, R

FP
 fo

r D
em

ol
iti

on
 c

on
tra

ct
or

s 
af

te
r 

cl
ea

ra
nc

e 
is

 c
er

ta
in

.

Q
2 

20
19

H
C

D
R

os
ef

ie
ld

: C
om

pl
et

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 p

ro
ce

ss
, p

ro
vi

de
 fi

na
nc

ia
l o

pt
io

ns
Q

2 
20

18
B

ui
ld

in
g 

P
er

m
it 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

in
 J

ul
y;

 F
un

di
ng

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r M
H

P
 a

nd
 4

%
 T

C
A

C
Q

3 
20

19

H
C

D
E

st
ab

lis
h 

A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
ol

ic
y 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
cl

iff
 s

ch
ed

ul
e,

 re
ha

bi
lit

at
io

n 
pl

an
 a

nd
 

re
vi

ew
 o

f r
es

er
ve

s
Q

2 
20

18
U

pd
at

e 
R

E
O

, C
lif

f S
ch

ed
ul

e,
 a

nd
 R

es
er

ve
 

S
tra

te
gy

Q
2 

20
19

H
C

D
C

om
pl

et
e 

cr
ea

tio
n 

of
 n

on
-p

ro
fit

 in
st

ru
m

en
ta

lit
y;

 tr
an

sf
er

 p
ro

pe
rti

es
 to

 n
ew

 e
nt

ity
Q

2 
20

18
N

/A

P
ag

e 
1 

o
f 

4

Page 78

Page 78 of 163



Tw
o 

Ye
ar

 P
la

n 
20

17
-2

01
9

A
tta

ch
m

en
t A

:
Tw

o-
Ye

ar
 W

or
k 

P
la

n 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

7 
to

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

9
U

pd
at

ed
 A

pr
il 

20
19

H
C

D
P

re
se

nt
 a

 m
em

o 
to

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
 o

ut
lin

in
g 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 o

pt
io

ns
 fo

r u
se

 o
f t

hi
rd

 p
ar

tie
s 

fo
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t w

or
k 

Q
2 

20
18

N
/A

H
C

D
B

M
R

: P
re

se
nt

 a
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t t
o 

B
oa

rd
; s

um
m

ar
iz

e 
up

da
te

s 
&

 re
vi

si
on

s 
to

 
ho

m
eo

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
pr

og
ra

m
s.

Q
2 

20
18

N
/A

H
C

D
R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 re

ne
w

 C
ity

  S
er

vi
ce

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t; 

in
cl

ud
e 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f p
en

si
on

 li
ab

ilit
ie

s 
fo

r C
ity

 fu
nd

ed
 p

os
iti

on
s

Q
2 

20
19

R
en

ew
al

 in
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 g

oi
ng

 fo
r B

oa
rd

 
A

pp
ro

va
l i

n 
M

ay
Q

2 
20

19

P
M

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

t A
D

A
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 fo

r o
ffi

ce
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 a
nd

 1
0 

un
its

 o
f 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 fe

at
ur

es
 a

t I
nd

ep
en

de
nc

e 
P

la
za

Q
3 

20
18

In
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

nd
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

in
 

A
ug

us
t o

f 2
01

9.
 T

as
k 

w
as

 u
pd

at
ed

 to
 

in
cl

ud
e 

20
 u

ni
t o

f a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

fe
at

ur
es

 a
t 

In
de

pe
nd

en
ce

 P
la

za
. 

Q
3 

20
19

H
C

D
Id

en
tif

y 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
t g

re
en

 in
iti

at
iv

es
: c

ha
ng

e 
ou

t 1
00

%
 o

f t
oi

le
ts

 to
 lo

w
-fl

ow
; e

xp
an

d 
w

at
er

 s
ub

-m
et

er
in

g 
to

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 p

ro
pe

rti
es

 w
he

re
 fe

as
ib

le
 o

r w
ith

 s
ub

 re
ha

b
Q

3 
20

18
S

am
e 

as
 la

st
 y

ea
r

O
ng

oi
ng

H
C

D
P

re
se

nt
 u

pd
at

ed
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t/A

cq
ui

si
tio

n 
P

la
n 

to
 B

oa
rd

 a
nn

ua
lly

Q
3 

20
18

; Q
3 

20
19

Tr
ac

k 
P

ip
el

in
e 

P
ro

je
ct

s 
an

d 
pr

es
en

t a
t 

an
nu

al
 B

oa
rd

 re
tre

at
Q

2 
20

19

H
C

D
E

ag
le

 &
 E

ve
re

tt 
si

te
: C

om
pl

et
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t, 

le
as

e 
up

 a
nd

 s
ta

bi
liz

at
io

n.
 C

on
ve

rt 
to

 
P

er
m

 fi
na

nc
in

g.
 

Q
3 

20
19

P
er

m
 C

on
ve

rs
io

n 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 M
ay

 2
01

9
Q

3 
20

19

H
C

D
In

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 P

la
za

: P
re

se
nt

 a
 m

em
o 

to
 B

oa
rd

 o
n 

an
 in

co
m

e,
 re

ha
b 

 a
nd

 re
fin

an
ci

ng
 

pl
an

 to
 m

ee
t 2

02
6 

de
ad

lin
e 

Q
3 

20
19

N
/A

H
C

D
D

el
 M

on
te

 s
ite

: C
om

pl
et

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
le

as
e 

up
 a

nd
 s

ta
bi

liz
at

io
n.

 C
on

ve
rt 

to
 P

er
m

 
fin

an
ci

ng
.

Q
4 

20
18

Fi
na

l P
ro

je
ct

 C
lo

se
ou

t a
nd

 9
 m

 In
sp

ec
tio

n
Q

2 
20

19

H
C

D
C

hi
na

 C
lip

pe
r: 

P
re

se
nt

 a
na

ly
si

s 
of

 ta
x 

cr
ed

it 
re

ha
bi

lit
at

io
n

Q
4 

20
18

D
ev

el
op

 a
 c

on
ce

pt
ua

l p
ro

je
ct

 p
la

n 
an

d 
fin

an
ci

ng
 s

tra
te

gy
 fo

r B
oa

rd
 a

pp
ro

va
l i

n 
O

ct
ob

er
Q

4 
20

19

H
P

D
M

an
ag

e 
se

ct
io

n 
8 

fu
nd

in
g 

to
 m

ax
im

iz
e 

le
as

in
g 

an
d 

to
 a

vo
id

 s
ho

rtf
al

l w
he

re
 p

os
si

bl
e

on
go

in
g

S
uc

ce
ss

fu
lly

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 s

ho
rtf

al
l. 

C
on

tin
ue

 to
 

m
on

ito
r H

A
P

 s
pe

nd
in

g 
on

-g
oi

ng

H
P

D
D

et
er

m
in

e 
w

ay
s 

to
 re

du
ce

 S
ec

tio
n 

8 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

co
st

s 
to

 m
ee

t a
dm

in
 fe

e 
in

co
m

e
on

go
in

g
S

ta
ff 

po
si

tio
n 

w
as

 e
lim

in
at

ed
, a

nd
 c

on
tin

ue
 

to
 lo

ok
 fo

r w
ay

s 
to

 s
tre

am
lin

e 
ad

m
in

 c
os

t.

H
P

D
C

om
pl

et
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f F
S

S
 P

ro
gr

am
; d

et
er

m
in

e 
fu

tu
re

 fu
nd

in
g

Q
1 

20
18

R
ev

ie
w

 w
as

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
Q

ua
de

l c
ha

ng
es

 
ar

e 
in

 p
ro

ce
ss

. R
ec

ei
ve

d 
H

U
D

 fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r 

20
18

-2
01

9

H
P

D
C

lo
se

 o
ut

 Q
ua

id
 re

po
rt 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 in
 H

P
D

Q
1 

20
18

C
om

pl
er

te
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

ad
m

in
 p

la
n 

up
da

te
s 

an
d 

st
af

f a
nd

 p
ro

ce
du

re
 c

ha
ng

es

H
P

D
E

ns
ur

e 
tim

el
y 

an
d 

co
m

pl
et

e 
A

nn
ua

l P
la

n 
su

bm
is

si
on

 to
 H

U
D

 e
ac

h 
ye

ar
Q

1 
20

18
; Q

1 
20

19
C

om
pl

et
ed

 fo
r 1

9-
20

H
P

D
Im

pl
em

en
t Y

ar
di

 R
en

t C
af

e 
fo

r a
nn

ua
l s

ub
m

is
si

on
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f a

pp
lic

at
io

ns
Q

2 
20

18
Q

1 
20

19
Li

m
ite

d 
la

un
ch

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

9
H

P
D

P
B

V
:  

ex
ec

ut
e 

P
B

V
 re

ne
w

al
s 

w
ith

 n
ew

 n
on

-p
ro

fit
Q

3 
20

18
C

om
pl

et
ed

 fo
r f

ou
r p

ro
pe

rti
es

O
ng

oi
ng

H
P

D
Im

pl
em

en
t V

A
S

H
 P

B
V

 p
ro

gr
am

; i
m

pl
em

en
t V

A
S

H
 H

C
V

 p
ro

gr
am

 if
 s

el
ec

te
d

Q
3 

20
18

Le
as

ed
 fi

ve
 V

A
S

H
 P

B
V

.  
Le

as
ed

 fi
rs

t f
iv

e 
V

A
S

H
 H

C
V

 a
nd

 w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

ne
xt

 fi
ve

.
H

P
D

D
ev

el
op

 p
ap

er
le

ss
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
fo

r a
ll 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 H

P
D

 p
ro

ce
ss

in
g.

Q
3 

20
18

O
ng

oi
ng

H
P

D
E

va
lu

at
e 

on
lin

e 
la

nd
lo

rd
 p

or
ta

l
Q

3 
20

18
Q

3 
20

19
W

ill 
re

vi
ew

 a
fte

r f
ul

l l
au

nc
h 

of
 R

en
tc

af
e 

in
 

Ju
ne

 2
01

9.

H
P

D
A

tta
in

 S
E

M
A

P
 H

ig
h 

P
er

fo
rm

er
 s

ta
tu

s 
ea

ch
 y

ea
r

Q
3 

20
18

; Q
3 

20
19

C
om

pl
et

ed
 fo

r 2
01

7-
18

.

H
R

 &
 O

ps
H

ire
 fo

r v
ac

an
t p

os
iti

on
s 

as
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 a
nd

 a
s 

th
ey

 a
ris

e;
 p

la
n 

fo
r r

et
ire

m
en

ts
on

go
in

g

H
R

 &
 O

ps
P

ro
vi

de
 ta

rg
et

ed
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r s
ta

ff 
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 s
up

er
vi

si
on

,  
IT

 s
ki

lls
 a

nd
 c

us
to

m
er

 
se

rv
ic

e)
on

go
in

g
O

ng
oi

ng
; C

om
pl

et
ed

 s
up

er
vi

so
r t

ra
in

in
gs

 Q
1 

20
19

H
R

 &
 O

ps
U

pd
at

e 
A

ge
nc

y/
A

dm
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

P
ro

ce
du

re
s 

fo
r S

ta
ff

on
go

in
g

H
R

 &
 O

ps
R

es
ea

rc
h 

em
pl

oy
ee

 re
co

gn
iti

on
 p

ro
gr

am
s

Q
1 

20
19

E
xp

an
d 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
lo

w
 c

os
t e

nh
an

ce
m

en
ts

 to
 

be
ne

fit
s 

pa
ck

ag
e

Q
4 

20
19

H
R

 &
 O

ps
R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t c

ha
ng

es
 to

 th
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
to

ol
. T

ra
in

 s
ta

ff.
  

Q
4 

20
18

D
el

ay
ed

Q
3 

20
19

P
ag

e 
2 

o
f 

4

Page 79

Page 79 of 163



Tw
o 

Ye
ar

 P
la

n 
20

17
-2

01
9

A
tta

ch
m

en
t A

:
Tw

o-
Ye

ar
 W

or
k 

P
la

n 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

7 
to

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

9
U

pd
at

ed
 A

pr
il 

20
19

H
R

 &
 O

ps
R

un
 a

nn
ua

l i
nt

er
n 

pr
og

ra
m

Q
2 

an
d 

on
go

in
g

O
ng

oi
ng

 fo
r s

um
m

er
 2

01
9

H
R

 &
 O

ps
R

eb
id

 v
is

io
n,

 d
en

ta
l, 

an
d 

an
ci

lla
ry

 H
R

 b
en

ef
its

Q
3 

20
18

Q
3 

20
19

H
R

 &
 O

ps
R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t a

n 
H

R
IS

 s
ys

te
m

Q
4 

20
18

Q
2 

20
19

C
oo

rd
in

at
e 

w
ith

 n
ew

 D
ire

ct
or

 o
f F

in
an

ce
Q

4 
20

19
 o

r 
Q

1 
20

20

H
R

 &
 O

ps
A

lig
n 

st
af

f s
ch

ed
ul

es
Q

4 
20

18
C

om
pl

et
ed

; a
ll 

of
fic

e 
st

af
f w

ill 
be

 o
n 

fle
x 

sc
he

du
le

 b
y 

en
d 

of
 Q

2

H
R

 &
 O

ps
C

om
pl

et
e 

of
f-b

oa
rd

in
g 

sy
st

em
.

Q
4 

20
18

O
ng

oi
ng

 - 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 a
dd

 c
om

po
ne

nt
s 

to
 

bo
th

 o
ffb

oa
rd

in
g 

an
d 

on
bo

ar
di

ng

P
ro

p.
 O

ps
O

ng
oi

ng
 m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f J

S
C

O
 a

t R
os

ef
ie

ld
, E

ag
le

, a
nd

 D
el

M
on

te
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

on
go

in
g

O
ng

oi
ng

 

P
ro

p.
 O

ps
M

an
ag

e 
so

ci
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

s 
to

 m
in

im
iz

e 
te

rm
in

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 m

ax
im

iz
e 

re
si

de
nt

 
w

el
l b

ei
ng

on
go

in
g

O
ng

oi
ng

 

P
ro

p.
 O

ps
C

om
pl

et
e 

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

P
la

nn
in

g;
 p

re
se

nt
 p

la
n 

to
 B

oa
rd

 a
nd

 s
ta

ff,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ph
ys

ic
al

 
pr

op
er

tie
s,

 IT
 s

ys
te

m
s 

an
d 

re
si

de
nt

 s
af

et
y.

 
Q

1 
20

18
Te

st
in

g 
ph

as
e 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s

Q
2 

20
19

P
ro

p.
 O

ps
D

ev
el

op
 re

po
rti

ng
 m

ec
ha

ni
sm

 fo
r J

S
C

O
 m

an
ag

ed
 s

ite
s

Q
1 

20
18

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s;

 P
M

 re
po

rti
ng

 in
 b

oa
rd

 p
ac

ke
t. 

JS
C

O
 s

ub
m

its
 m

on
th

ly
 fi

na
nc

ia
ls

 fo
r e

ac
h 

m
an

ag
ed

 s
ite

 m
on

th
ly

. 
on

go
in

g

P
ro

p.
 O

ps
Im

pl
em

en
t n

ew
 le

as
e 

an
d 

ho
us

e 
ru

le
s 

at
 a

ll 
si

te
s

Q
1 

20
19

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s;

 A
tto

rn
ey

 re
vi

ew
in

g 
le

as
e 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 fo

r c
ha

ng
es

. 
Q

2 
20

19

P
ro

p.
 O

ps
U

pd
at

e 
al

l f
or

m
s 

fo
r P

ro
pe

rty
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
pr

oc
es

s
Q

1 
20

19
D

ra
ft 

w
ith

 a
tto

rn
ey

Q
2 

20
19

P
ro

p.
 O

ps
Im

pl
em

en
t c

he
ck

 s
ca

nn
in

g 
at

 A
B

D
 a

nd
 E

sp
er

an
za

Q
2 

20
18

C
om

pl
et

ed
 in

 M
ay

 o
f 2

01
8.

P
ro

p.
 O

ps
Im

pl
em

en
t Y

ar
di

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 fo

r P
M

 d
ep

t.
Q

2 
20

18
In

 p
ro

gr
es

s;
 F

ou
r p

ro
pe

rti
es

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

tra
ns

iti
on

ed
 to

 a
ffo

rd
ab

le
 w

ith
 tw

o 
m

or
e 

to
 

be
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 2
01

9.
 

Q
3 

20
19

P
ro

p.
 O

ps
C

on
du

ct
 a

 re
vi

ew
 o

f p
ro

pe
rty

 o
pe

ra
tio

ns
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

) c
os

t/i
nc

om
e 

an
al

ys
is

 
an

d 
co

m
pa

re
 w

ith
 th

ird
 p

ar
ty

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

pt
io

ns
.

Q
3 

20
18

D
el

ay
ed

 d
ue

 to
 s

ta
ff 

ch
an

ge
s 

Q
3 

20
19

P
ro

p.
 O

ps
H

ire
 a

nd
 tr

ai
n 

tw
o 

su
pe

rv
is

or
s

Q
4 

20
17

O
ne

 h
ire

d 
in

 Q
3 

20
18

; o
th

er
 in

 p
ro

gr
es

s 

R
en

t P
ro

g.
M

an
ag

e 
R

en
t P

ro
gr

am
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ag

re
em

en
t w

ith
 c

ity
.  

on
go

in
g

O
ng

oi
ng

 p
ro

vi
si

on
s 

of
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ag
re

em
en

t 
m

ay
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
, d

ue
 to

 u
pc

om
in

g 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 th
e 

O
rd

in
an

ce
.

on
go

in
g

R
en

t P
ro

g.
Tr

ai
n 

ne
w

 s
ta

ff 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
ke

y 
ac

tiv
iti

es
Q

1 
20

18
O

nb
oa

rd
ed

 th
re

e 
ne

w
 s

ta
ff 

m
em

be
rs

 s
in

ce
 

M
ay

 2
01

8,
 w

ill 
fil

l l
as

t v
ac

an
t p

os
iti

on
 a

nd
 

on
bo

ar
d 

ne
w

 s
ta

ff 
pe

rs
on

 in
 Q

2.
Q

2 
20

19

R
en

t P
ro

g.
E

st
ab

lis
h 

ne
w

 o
ffi

ce
 lo

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
re

la
te

d 
po

lic
ie

s/
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

Q
1 

20
18

O
ffi

ce
 lo

ca
tio

n 
is

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

an
d 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 u
pd

at
ed

.
Q

1 
20

19

R
en

t P
ro

g.
R

es
ea

rc
h,

 p
ro

cu
re

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

t d
at

ab
as

e 
fo

r R
en

t P
ro

gr
am

Q
2 

20
18

C
on

tra
ct

 a
w

ar
de

d 
to

 v
en

do
r 3

D
i a

nd
 w

e 
ar

e 
st

ar
tin

g 
th

e 
in

iti
al

 p
ha

se
 o

f j
oi

nt
 p

ro
je

ct
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 p
ro

du
ct

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t.
Q

2 
20

19

R
en

t P
ro

g.
E

xp
an

d 
ou

tre
ac

h 
se

rv
ic

e;
 u

pd
at

e 
al

l m
at

er
ia

ls
 to

 re
fle

ct
 3

14
8 

on
ly

Q
2 

20
18

O
ut

re
ac

h 
pl

an
 c

om
pl

et
e 

an
d 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 

up
da

te
d.

 W
eb

si
te

 a
nd

 w
or

ks
ho

p 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 u
pd

at
ed

. T
en

an
t 

an
d 

La
nd

lo
rd

 P
oc

ke
t G

ui
de

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

de
ve

lo
pe

d.
 M

as
s 

m
ai

lin
g 

of
 p

ro
gr

am
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
na

l b
ro

ch
ur

es
 w

ill 
be

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
Q

2.

Q
4 

20
18

R
en

t P
ro

g.
C

on
du

ct
 a

 re
vi

ew
 o

f R
en

t P
ro

gr
am

 a
s 

an
 o

ng
oi

ng
 b

us
in

es
s 

fo
r A

H
A

Q
4 

20
18

D
ra

ft 
re

po
rt 

is
 in

 p
ro

gr
es

s.
Q

2 
20

19

P
ag

e 
3 

o
f 

4

Page 80

Page 80 of 163



Tw
o 

Ye
ar

 P
la

n 
20

17
-2

01
9

A
tta

ch
m

en
t A

:
Tw

o-
Ye

ar
 W

or
k 

P
la

n 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

7 
to

 J
un

e 
30

, 2
01

9
U

pd
at

ed
 A

pr
il 

20
19

R
en

t P
ro

g.
C

on
du

ct
 c

us
to

m
er

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
su

rv
ey

Q
4 

20
18

C
us

to
m

er
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 is

 s
ol

ic
ite

d 
an

d 
ga

th
er

ed
  

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

 w
eb

si
te

 o
n 

an
 o

ng
oi

ng
 

ba
si

s.
 A

 m
or

e 
ta

rg
et

ed
 a

nd
 p

ro
ac

tiv
e 

cu
st

om
er

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
su

rv
ey

, f
or

 re
ce

nt
 

cl
ie

nt
s,

 is
 b

ei
ng

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 a

nd
 w

ill 
be

 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 v
ia

 m
ai

l a
nd

/o
r e

m
ai

l b
y 

M
ay

 o
f 

20
19

.

Q
2 

20
19

P
ag

e 
4 

o
f 

4

Page 81

Page 81 of 163



Page 82

Page 82 of 163



Page 83

Page 83 of 163



Page 84

Page 84 of 163



Page 85

Page 85 of 163



Page 86

Page 86 of 163



Page 87

Page 87 of 163



Page 88

Page 88 of 163



Page 89

Page 89 of 163



Page 90

Page 90 of 163



Page 91

Page 91 of 163



Page 92

Page 92 of 163



Page 93

Page 93 of 163



Page 94

Page 94 of 163



Page 95

Page 95 of 163



Page 96

Page 96 of 163



Page 97

Page 97 of 163



Page 98

Page 98 of 163



Page 99

Page 99 of 163



Page 100

Page 100 of 163



Page 101

Page 101 of 163



Page 102

Page 102 of 163



Page 103

Page 103 of 163



Page 104

Page 104 of 163



Page 105

Page 105 of 163



Page 106

Page 106 of 163



Page 107

Page 107 of 163



Page 108

Page 108 of 163



Page 109

Page 109 of 163



Page 110

Page 110 of 163



Page 111

Page 111 of 163



Page 112

Page 112 of 163



Page 113

Page 113 of 163



Page 114

Page 114 of 163



Page 115

Page 115 of 163



Page 116

Page 116 of 163



Page 117

Page 117 of 163



Page 118

Page 118 of 163



Page 119

Page 119 of 163



Page 120

Page 120 of 163



Page 121

Page 121 of 163



Page 122

Page 122 of 163



Page 123

Page 123 of 163



Page 124

Page 124 of 163



Page 125

Page 125 of 163



Page 126

Page 126 of 163



Page 127

Page 127 of 163



Page 128

Page 128 of 163



Page 129

Page 129 of 163



Page 130

Page 130 of 163



Page 131

Page 131 of 163



Page 132

Page 132 of 163



Page 133

Page 133 of 163



Page 134

Page 134 of 163



Page 135

Page 135 of 163



Page 136

Page 136 of 163



Page 137

Page 137 of 163



Page 138

Page 138 of 163



Page 139

Page 139 of 163



Page 140

Page 140 of 163



Page 141

Page 141 of 163



Page 142

Page 142 of 163



Page 143

Page 143 of 163



Page 144

Page 144 of 163



Page 145

Page 145 of 163



Page 146

Page 146 of 163



Page 147

Page 147 of 163



Page 148

Page 148 of 163



Page 149

Page 149 of 163



Page 150

Page 150 of 163



Page 151

Page 151 of 163



Page 152

Page 152 of 163



Page 153

Page 153 of 163



Page 154

Page 154 of 163



H
o

u
s

in
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 C
it

y
 o

f 
A

la
m

e
d

a
7

5
1

Y
e

a
r 

E
n

d
: 

J
u

n
e

 3
0

, 
2

0
1

8

A
d

ju
s
ti

n
g

 j
o

u
rn

a
l 
e
n

tr
ie

s

D
a

te
: 

 7
/1

/2
0

1
7

  
T

o
  

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

8

N
u

m
b

e
r

  
 D

a
te

  
 N

a
m

e
  
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
N

o
  

 R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
A

n
n

o
ta

ti
o

n
D

e
b

it
C

re
d

it
R

e
c

u
rr

e
n

c
e

M
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t

1
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

N
o
te

s,
 L

o
a
n
s 

a
n
d
 M

o
rt

g
a
g
e
s 

R
e
ce

iv
a
b
le

 -
 N

o
n
-C

u
rr

e
n

1
7

1
-S

L
8

6
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

1
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

L
o

n
g

-t
e

rm
 D

e
b

t,
 N

e
t 

o
f 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

- 
C

a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

/
3

5
1

-S
L

8
6

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

T
o

 a
d

d
 a

 N
o

te
 R

e
c
ie

v
a

b
le

/P
a

y
a

b
le

to
 t
h
e
 A

u
th

o
ri
ty

's
 b

o
o
ks

.

2
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

D
e
fe

rr
e
d
 O

u
tf
lo

w
 o

f 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
s

2
0

0
-S

L
M

M
2

8
4

2
,1

0
9

.0
0

2
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

A
c
c
ru

e
d

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 O
P

E
B

 L
ia

b
ili

ti
e

s
3

5
7

-S
L

M
M

2
9

2
,0

6
2

.0
0

2
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

D
e
fe

rr
e
d
 I
n
flo

w
 o

f 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
s

4
0

0
-S

L
M

M
2

7
5

0
,5

8
5

.0
0

2
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

D
e
fe

rr
e
d
 O

u
tf
lo

w
 o

f 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
s

2
0

0
-F

S
S

M
M

2
7

,1
7

5
.0

0

2
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

A
c
c
ru

e
d

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 O
P

E
B

 L
ia

b
ili

ti
e

s
3

5
7

-F
S

S
M

M
2

1
2

,6
7

0
.0

0

2
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

D
e
fe

rr
e
d
 I
n
flo

w
 o

f 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
s

4
0

0
-F

S
S

M
M

2
1

6
,6

9
5

.0
0

2
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

P
ri
o

r 
P

e
ri
o

d
 A

d
ju

st
m

e
n

ts
, 

E
q

u
ity

 T
ra

n
sf

e
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
r

1
1

0
4

0
-S

L
M

M
2

1
,0

2
1

,2
3

2
.0

0

2
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

D
e
fe

rr
e
d
 O

u
tf
lo

w
 o

f 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
s

2
0

0
-H

C
V

P
M

M
2

1
9

9
,2

5
2

.0
0

2
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

A
c
c
ru

e
d

 P
e

n
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 O
P

E
B

 L
ia

b
ili

ti
e

s
3

5
7

-H
C

V
P

M
M

2
4

1
,1

1
8

.0
0

2
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

D
e
fe

rr
e
d
 I
n
flo

w
 o

f 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
s

4
0

0
-H

C
V

P
M

M
2

4
3

6
,2

6
1

.0
0

2
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 -

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
v
e

9
1

5
0

0
-S

L
M

M
2

4
7

7
,7

3
8

.0
0

2
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

E
m

p
lo

ye
e

 B
e

n
e

fit
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
tio

n
s 

- 
T

e
n

a
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
9

2
3

0
0

-S
L

M
M

2
3

9
,8

1
1

.0
0

2
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

E
m

p
lo

ye
e

 B
e

n
e

fit
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
tio

n
s 

- 
O

rd
in

a
ry

 M
a

in
te

n
a

9
4

5
0

0
-S

L
M

M
2

1
4

5
,9

7
5

.0
0

2
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

P
ri
o

r 
P

e
ri
o

d
 A

d
ju

st
m

e
n

ts
, 

E
q

u
ity

 T
ra

n
sf

e
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
r

1
1

0
4

0
-F

S
S

M
M

2
1

5
,0

1
8

.0
0

2
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

E
m

p
lo

ye
e

 B
e

n
e

fit
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
tio

n
s 

- 
T

e
n

a
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
9

2
3

0
0

-F
S

S
M

M
2

7
,1

7
2

.0
0

2
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

P
ri
o

r 
P

e
ri
o

d
 A

d
ju

st
m

e
n

ts
, 

E
q

u
ity

 T
ra

n
sf

e
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
r

1
1

0
4

0
-H

C
V

P
M

M
2

4
6

5
,5

6
1

.0
0

2
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

E
m

p
lo

y
e

e
 B

e
n

e
fi
t 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s
 -

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti
v
e

9
1

5
0

0
-H

C
V

P
M

M
2

2
1

1
,0

7
0

.0
0

T
o
 a

d
ju

st
 p

e
n
si

o
n
 a

n
d
 O

P
E

B
 r

e
la

te
d

b
a
la

n
ce

s 
p
e
r 

u
p
d
a
te

d
 a

m
o
u
n
ts

3
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

C
a
sh

 -
 U

n
re

st
ri
ct

e
d

1
1

1
-S

L
A

2
1

,1
4

7
,2

5
1

.0
0

3
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 R

e
c
e

iv
a

b
le

 -
 M

is
c
e

lla
n

e
o

u
s

1
2

5
-S

L
A

2
1

,1
4

7
,2

5
1

.0
0

T
o

 r
e

c
la

s
s
 c

a
s
h

 a
n

d
 A

R
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 t
ra

n
sf

e
rs

4
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

C
a
sh

 -
 O

th
e
r 

R
e
st

ri
ct

e
d

1
1

3
-S

L
A

2
9

3
,7

1
0

.0
0

4
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

P
re

p
a
id

 E
xp

e
n
se

s 
a
n
d
 O

th
e
r 

A
ss

e
ts

1
4

2
-S

L
A

2
9

3
,7

1
0

.0
0

T
o

 r
e

c
la

s
s
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 c

a
s
h

 a
n

d

o
th

e
r 

cu
rr

e
n
t 
a
ss

e
ts

 t
o
 m

o
re

 a
cc

u
ra

te
ly

 r
e
fle

ct
 c

a
sh

 a
t 
ye

a
r 

e
n
d

5
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

C
a
sh

 -
 U

n
re

st
ri
ct

e
d

1
1

1
-S

L
A

2
1

5
2

,4
2

8
.0

0

5
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

C
a
sh

 -
 O

th
e
r 

R
e
st

ri
ct

e
d

1
1

3
-S

L
A

2
1

0
7

,5
6

7
.0

0

5
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

C
a
sh

 -
 T

e
n
a
n
t 
S

e
cu

ri
ty

 D
e
p
o
si

ts
1

1
4

-S
L

A
2

4
4

,8
6

1
.0

0

5
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

C
a
sh

 -
 O

th
e
r 

R
e
st

ri
ct

e
d

1
1

3
-H

C
V

P
A

2
3

7
,8

7
2

.0
0

5
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

In
ve

st
m

e
n
ts

 -
 U

n
re

st
ri
ct

e
d

1
3

1
-H

C
V

P
A

2
2

0
,6

3
0

.0
0

5
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

In
ve

st
m

e
n
ts

 -
 R

e
st

ri
ct

e
d

1
3

2
-H

C
V

P
A

2
5

8
,5

0
2

.0
0

T
o

 p
ro

p
e

rl
y
 r

e
c
o

rd
 r

e
s
tr

ic
te

d
 c

a
s
h

6
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

P
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
L

o
n

g
-t

e
rm

 D
e

b
t 

- 
C

a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
je

c
3

4
3

-S
L

A
A

2
6

3
1

.0
0

6
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

P
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
L

o
n

g
-t

e
rm

 D
e

b
t 

- 
C

a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
je

c
3

4
3

-S
L

A
A

2
1

,0
0

3
,6

4
1

.0
0

6
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
P

o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
L
o
n
g
-t

e
rm

 D
e
b
t 
- 

O
p
e
ra

tin
g
 B

o
rr

3
4

4
-S

L
A

A
2

6
3

1
.0

0

6
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

L
o

n
g

-t
e

rm
 D

e
b

t,
 N

e
t 

o
f 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

- 
C

a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

/
3

5
1

-S
L

A
A

2
1

,0
0

3
,6

4
1

.0
0

3
/1

4
/2

0
1

9

3
:0

5
 P

M
P

a
g

e
1

Page 155

Page 155 of 163



H
o

u
s

in
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 C
it

y
 o

f 
A

la
m

e
d

a
7

5
1

-1
Y

e
a

r 
E

n
d

: 
J

u
n

e
 3

0
, 

2
0

1
8

A
d

ju
s
ti

n
g

 j
o

u
rn

a
l 
e
n

tr
ie

s

D
a

te
: 

 7
/1

/2
0

1
7

  
T

o
  

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

8

N
u

m
b

e
r

  
 D

a
te

  
 N

a
m

e
  
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
N

o
  

 R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
A

n
n

o
ta

ti
o

n
D

e
b

it
C

re
d

it
R

e
c

u
rr

e
n

c
e

M
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t

T
o

 r
e

c
la

s
s
if
y
 l
o

n
g

-t
e

rm
 d

e
b

t 
to

d
is

p
la

y 
th

e
 s

h
o

rt
-t

e
rm

 p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
b

t

7
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

In
te

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
 D

u
e
 F

ro
m

1
4

4
-S

L
II

1
5

4
,4

5
6

.0
0

7
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

 <
=

 9
0

 D
a

y
s

3
1

2
-S

L
II

1
5

4
,4

5
6

.0
0

7
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

In
te

r 
P

ro
g
ra

m
 -

 D
u
e
 T

o
3

4
7

-H
C

V
P

II
1

5
4

,4
5

6
.0

0

7
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

N
o

n
-c

u
rr

e
n

t 
L

ia
b

ili
ti
e

s
 -

 O
th

e
r

3
5

3
-H

C
V

P
II

1
5

4
,4

5
6

.0
0

T
o
 t
ru

e
 u

p
 F

S
S

 e
sc

ro
w

 b
a
la

n
ce

 a
t

ye
a
r 

e
n
d

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

C
a
sh

 -
 U

n
re

st
ri
ct

e
d

1
1

1
-S

L
3

0
0

.0
0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

C
a
sh

 -
 U

n
re

st
ri
ct

e
d

1
1

1
-S

L
2

6
5

,6
5

7
.0

0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

C
a
sh

 -
 O

th
e
r 

R
e
st

ri
ct

e
d

1
1

3
-S

L
1

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

B
u

ild
in

g
s

1
6

2
-S

L
5

,7
3

8
,2

3
8

.0
0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

A
c
c
u

m
u

la
te

d
 D

e
p

re
c
ia

ti
o

n
1

6
6

-S
L

2
,8

3
4

,6
2

2
.0

0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

U
n
e
a
rn

e
d
 R

e
ve

n
u
e

3
4

2
-S

L
3

0
0

.0
0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

L
o

n
g

-t
e

rm
 D

e
b

t,
 N

e
t 

o
f 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

- 
C

a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

/
3

5
1

-S
L

1
3

,1
2

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

L
o

n
g

-t
e

rm
 D

e
b

t,
 N

e
t 

o
f 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

- 
C

a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

/
3

5
1

-S
L

6
6

6
,0

0
0

.0
0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

C
a
sh

 -
 U

n
re

st
ri
ct

e
d

1
1

1
-B

C
U

3
0

0
.0

0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

C
a
sh

 -
 U

n
re

st
ri
ct

e
d

1
1

1
-B

C
U

2
6

5
,6

5
7

.0
0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

C
a
sh

 -
 O

th
e
r 

R
e
st

ri
ct

e
d

1
1

3
-B

C
U

1
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

P
re

p
a
id

 E
xp

e
n
se

s 
a
n
d
 O

th
e
r 

C
u
rr

e
n
t 
A

ss
e
ts

1
4

2
-B

C
U

3
0

0
.0

0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

B
u

ild
in

g
s

1
6

2
-B

C
U

5
,7

3
8

,2
3

8
.0

0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

A
c
c
u

m
u

la
te

d
 D

e
p

ri
c
ia

ti
o

n
1

6
6

-B
C

U
2

,8
3

4
,6

2
2

.0
0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

L
o

n
g

-t
e

rm
 D

e
b

t,
 N

e
t 

o
f 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

- 
C

a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

/
3

5
1

-B
C

U
1

3
,1

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

L
o

n
g

-t
e

rm
 D

e
b

t,
 N

e
t 

o
f 

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

- 
C

a
p

it
a

l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

/
3

5
1

-B
C

U
6

6
6

,0
0

0
.0

0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

P
ri
o

r 
P

e
ri
o

d
 A

d
ju

st
m

e
n

ts
, 

E
q

u
ity

 T
ra

n
sf

e
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
r

1
1

0
4

0
-S

L
1

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

P
ri
o

r 
P

e
ri
o

d
 A

d
ju

st
m

e
n

ts
, 

E
q

u
ity

 T
ra

n
sf

e
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
r

1
1

0
4

0
-S

L
2

6
5

,6
5

7
.0

0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

P
ri
o

r 
P

e
ri
o

d
 A

d
ju

st
m

e
n

ts
, 

E
q

u
ity

 T
ra

n
sf

e
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
r

1
1

0
4

0
-S

L
6

6
6

,0
0

0
.0

0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

G
a

in
 o

r 
L

o
s
s
 o

n
 S

a
le

 o
f 

C
a

p
it
a

l 
A

s
s
e

ts
7

1
6

0
0

-S
L

1
0

,2
2

1
,3

8
4

.0
0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

P
ri
o

r 
P

e
ri
o

d
 A

d
ju

st
m

e
n

ts
, 

E
q

u
ity

 T
ra

n
sf

e
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
r

1
1

0
4

0
-B

C
U

1
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

P
ri
o

r 
P

e
ri
o

d
 A

d
ju

st
m

e
n

ts
, 

E
q

u
ity

 T
ra

n
sf

e
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
r

1
1

0
4

0
-B

C
U

2
6

5
,6

5
7

.0
0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

P
ri
o

r 
P

e
ri
o

d
 A

d
ju

st
m

e
n

ts
, 

E
q

u
ity

 T
ra

n
sf

e
rs

 a
n

d
 C

o
r

1
1

0
4

0
-B

C
U

6
6

6
,0

0
0

.0
0

8
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

G
a

in
/L

o
s
s
 o

n
 S

a
le

 o
f 

F
ix

e
d

 A
s
s
e

t
7

1
6

0
0

-B
C

U
1

0
,2

2
1

,3
8

4
.0

0

T
o

 r
e

c
o

rd
 A

A
H

C
 F

in
a

n
c
ia

ls
 a

s
 a

b
le

n
d
e
d
 c

o
m

p
o
n
e
n
t 
u
n
it

9
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

C
a

p
it
a

l 
G

ra
n

ts
7

0
6

1
0

-S
L

8
3

6
,2

1
5

.0
0

9
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

O
th

e
r 

G
e
n
e
ra

l E
xp

e
n
se

s
9

6
2

0
0

-S
L

8
3

6
,2

1
5

.0
0

T
o

 a
d

ju
s
t 

th
e

 c
a

p
it
a

l 
g

ra
n

t

re
ve

n
u
e
 a

n
d
 c

a
p
ita

l g
ra

n
t 
e
xp

e
n
se

s

1
0

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

8
A

cc
ru

e
d
 I
n
te

re
st

 P
a
ya

b
le

3
2

5
-S

L
A

A
2

9
6

1
,8

4
6

.0
0

1
0

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

8
L

o
n

g
-t

e
rm

 D
e

b
t,

 N
e

t 
o

f 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
- 

C
a

p
it
a

l 
P

ro
je

c
ts

/
3

5
1

-S
L

A
A

2
9

6
1

,8
4

6
.0

0

T
o

 r
e

c
la

s
s
 a

c
c
ru

e
d

 i
n

te
re

s
t

p
a

y
a

b
le

 o
u

t 
o

f 
d

e
b

t

1
1

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

8
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

 <
=

 9
0

 D
a

y
s

3
1

2
-S

L
L

L
1

3
5

,5
9

6
.0

0

3
/1

4
/2

0
1

9

3
:0

5
 P

M
P

a
g

e
2

Page 156

Page 156 of 163



H
o

u
s

in
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 C
it

y
 o

f 
A

la
m

e
d

a
7

5
1

-2
Y

e
a

r 
E

n
d

: 
J

u
n

e
 3

0
, 

2
0

1
8

A
d

ju
s
ti

n
g

 j
o

u
rn

a
l 
e
n

tr
ie

s

D
a

te
: 

 7
/1

/2
0

1
7

  
T

o
  

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

8

N
u

m
b

e
r

  
 D

a
te

  
 N

a
m

e
  
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t 
N

o
  

 R
e

fe
re

n
c

e
A

n
n

o
ta

ti
o

n
D

e
b

it
C

re
d

it
R

e
c

u
rr

e
n

c
e

M
is

s
ta

te
m

e
n

t

1
1

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

8
In

te
r 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 -

 D
u
e
 T

o
3

4
7

-S
L

L
L

1
3

5
,5

9
6

.0
0

T
o

 b
a

la
n

c
e

 i
n

te
rp

ro
g

ra
m

1
2

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

8
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 R

e
c
e

iv
a

b
le

 -
 M

is
c
e

lla
n

e
o

u
s

1
2

5
-S

L
6

0
8

,2
9

4
.0

0

1
2

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

8
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 R

e
c
e

iv
a

b
le

 -
 M

is
c
e

lla
n

e
o

u
s

1
2

5
-S

L
8

5
,4

3
0

.0
0

1
2

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

8
In

te
r 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 D

u
e
 F

ro
m

1
4

4
-S

L
6

0
8

,2
9

4
.0

0

1
2

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

8
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

 <
=

 9
0

 D
a

y
s

3
1

2
-S

L
6

0
8

,2
9

4
.0

0

1
2

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

8
A

c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a

b
le

 <
=

 9
0

 D
a

y
s

3
1

2
-S

L
8

5
,4

3
0

.0
0

1
2

6
/3

0
/2

0
1

8
In

te
r 

P
ro

g
ra

m
 -

 D
u
e
 T

o
3

4
7

-S
L

6
0

8
,2

9
4

.0
0

T
o

 r
e

c
la

s
s
 A

R
 a

n
d

 A
P

 t
o

in
te

rc
o
m

p
a
n
y

4
2

,9
3

4
,6

6
0

.0
0

4
2

,9
3

4
,6

6
0

.0
0

N
e
t 

In
c
o

m
e
 (

L
o

s
s
)

1
,7

5
7

,9
8

2
.0

0

3
/1

4
/2

0
1

9

3
:0

5
 P

M
P

a
g

e
3

Page 157

Page 157 of 163



Page 158

Page 158 of 163



Page 159

Page 159 of 163



Page 160

Page 160 of 163



Page 161

Page 161 of 163



Page 162

Page 162 of 163



Page 163

Page 163 of 163


	3-N - Attachment A - Housing Authority of the City of Alameda Procurement Policy.pdf
	GENERAL
	APPLICATION
	EXCLUSIONS
	CHANGES IN LAWS AND REGULATIONS
	PRINCIPLES
	ETHICS IN PUBLIC CONTRACTING
	Conflict of Interest
	GRATUITIES, KICKBACKS, AND USE OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
	Prohibition Against Contingent Fees
	Sanctions
	PURCHASING AUTHORITY AND METHODS
	The regulation defines procurement in the following manner: $210,000 or less = “micro”, $250,000 or less = “small”, above $1250,000 = “formal”.
	Petty Cash Purchases
	Small and Micro Purchases
	Formal (Sealed Bids)
	Cooperative Purchasing/Intergovernmental Agreements
	Competitive Proposals
	Noncompetitive Proposals
	Contract Modifications
	CREDIT CARD PURCHASING
	CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATIONS
	CONTRACT CLAUSES
	APPEALS AND REMEDIES
	DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY
	DOCUMENTATION




